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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor and the Board of Finance
Town of Putham, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Putnam,
CT, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Town of Putnam'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Putnam, CT, as of June 30, 2022,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Putnam, CT and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of
Putnam, CT’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

SERVING BUSINESSES, INDIVIDUALS, NONPROFITS AND GOVERNMENTS

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Connecticut Socjety of Certified Public Accountants
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Putnam, CT’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Putnam, CT’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the pension and
OPEB schedules on pages 4-11, 58-64, and 65-70 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Putnam, CT’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and supplemental schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and supplemental
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the other supplemental schedules but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
10, 2022, on our consideration of the Town of Putnam, CT’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Putnam, CT’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Putnam, CT's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance

%/&”{7 4 Aposiicer-

King, King & Associates, P.C., CPAs
Winsted, CT
December 10, 2022



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

As management of the Town of Putnam, CT, we offer readers of the Town of Putnam, CT’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Putnam, CT
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town of Putham, CT exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$107,221,584 (net position). Of this amount, $16,827,891 (unrestricted net position) may be
used to meet the government’'s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. This amount
consists of $9,416,414 that is attributable to the Town's governmental activities and
$7.411,477 that is attributable to the Town’s water and sewer activities (business-type
activities).

e Inthe Town's governmental activities, total net position increased by $3,184,895.
e Inthe Town’s business-type activities, total net position increased by $843,880.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Putnam, CT's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $14,992,722, a decrease of $414,921 in
comparison with the prior year.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$6,998,503 or 25.3% of total General Fund budgeted expenditures. The total fund balance of
the General Fund was $8,435,708 or 30.5% of total General Fund budgeted expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Putnam, CT’s
basic financial statements. The Town of Putnam, CT’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Putnam, CT’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Putnam, CT’s assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator whether the financial position of the Town of Putnam, CT is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’'s net position is
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Putnam, CT
that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town of Putnam, CT include
general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, sanitation, community and
social services, economic development, and education. Property taxes, state and federal grants, and
local revenues such as fees and licenses finance most of these activities. The business-type
activities of the Town of Putnam, CT include fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost
of certain services it provides for water and sewer.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Putnam,
CT, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of Putnam, CT can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison.

The Town of Putnam, CT, maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Ash Landfill Fund,
High School Renovation & Expansion Fund, and Municipal Complex Fund. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

The Town of Putnam, CT, adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-17 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to
account for its water and sewer operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as
the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Information is presented separately in
the proprietary fund financial statements for the Water and Sewer funds, both of which are considered
to be major funds.



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town's various
functions. The Town uses internal service funds to account for health insurance benefits offered to
certain employees. Because this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-
type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for Proprietary Funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-22 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 23-57 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the Town of Putnam, CT, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $107,221,584 at the close of the most recent fiscal
year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
Restated Restated Restated
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current and Other Assets $ 34,430,086 $ 39,206367 $ 8088154 $ 8555234 $ 42518240 $ 47,761,601
Capital Assets 85,153,915 82,388,622 48,334,611 48,394,938 133,488,526 130,783,560
Total Assets 119,584,001 121,594,989 56,422,765 56,950,172 176,008,766 178,545,161
Deferred Outflows
of Resources 2,383,120 1,117,497 197,311 31,777 2 580,431 1,149,274
Long-term Liabilities 26,257,322 27,950,097 26,348,556 27,121,169 52,605,878 55,071,266
Other Liabilities 5,309,894 6,186,354 435,482 582,335 5,745,376 6,768,689
Total Liabilities 31,567,216 34,136,451 26,784,038 27,703,504 58,351,254 61,839,955
Deferred Inflows
of Resources 12,678,947 14,039,972 335,412 621,699 13,014,359 14,661,671
Net Position:
Net Investment
in Capital Assets 62,602,216 59,134,681 22,089,149 21,372,019 84,691,365 80,506,700
Restricted 5,702,328 5,338,313 - - 5,702,328 5,338,313
Unrestricted 9,416,414 10,063,069 7,411,477 7,284,727 16,827,891 17,347,796
Total Net Position $ 77,720,958 $ 74,536,063 $ 29,500,626 $ 28,656,746 §$ 107,221,584 $ 103,192,809

The largest portion of the Town’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (land, buildings
and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges)
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these
assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for spending.
Net investment in capital assets increased by $4,184,665 during the current fiscal year.



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

The Town's restricted net position of $5,702,328 increased by $364,015 compared to last years
restricted net position of $5,338,313.

The remainder of the Town’s net position is considered unrestricted and may be used to meet the
Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

REVENUES
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Unrestricted Grants & Contributions
Unrestricted Investment Income
Contract and Other Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and
Contributions

Capital Grants and
Contributions

Total Revenues

EXPENSES
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Sanitation
Community and Social Services
Economic Development
Education
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Business-Type Activities:

Water
Sewer
Total Expenses
Change in Net Position
Before Transfers
Transfers

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position, Restated
Ending Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 021
$ 15,800,751 $ 15,379,354 $ - - $ 15,800,751 15,379,354
463,862 244 124 - - 463,862 244,124
338,286 31,324 38,399 24,958 376,685 56,282
3,813,362 2,976,233 - - 3,813,362 2,976,233
2,183,662 1,849,469 5,737,025 5,589,865 7,920,687 7,439,334
16,811,262 19,618,841 - - 16,811,262 19,618,841
1,445,934 2,439,264 - - 1,445,934 2,439,264
40,857,119 _ 42,538,609 5,775,424 5,614,823 46,632,543 48,153,432
2,223,056 1,871,361 - - 2,223,056 1,871,361
168,990 156,575 - - 168,990 156,575
3,989,038 3,041,623 - B 3,989,038 3,041,623
1,738,805 1,576,122 - - 1,738,805 1,576,122
690,698 617,079 - . 690,698 617,079
374,253 305,027 - B 374,253 305,027
291,208 349,264 - - 291,208 349,264
26,400,920 31,143,097 - - 26,400,920 31,143,097
698,852 706,595 - - 698,852 706,595
- - 2,864,982 2,707,932 2,864,982 2,707,932
- - 3,162,966 2,807,822 3,162,966 2,807,822
36,575,820 39,766,743 6,027,948 5,615,754 42,603,768 45,282,497
4,281,299 2,771,866 (252,524) 99,069 4,028,775 2,870,935
(1,096,404) (92,115) 1,096,404 92,115 - -
3,184,895 2,679,751 843,880 191,184 4,028,775 2,870,935
74,536,063 71,010,093 28,656,746 28,437,998 103,192,809 99,448,091

$ 77,720,958 3 73,689,844

$ 29500626 $ 28,629,182

$ 107221584 $ 102,319,026

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Town of Putnam, CT’s net position

by $3,184,895.

Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The sale of the old Town Hall and Library buildings for more than $800,000.

¢ The internal service funds experienced a positive change in net position of $418,754 which is
reported with governmental activities.



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

e Capitalization of $5.5 Million in assets which was $2.8 Million greater than the current years
depreciation.

Thirty-nine percent (39%) of the revenues of the Town were derived from property taxes, followed by
forty-six percent (46%) from grants and contributions, five percent (5%) from charges for services and
ten percent (10%) of the Town’s revenue in the fiscal year was derived from investment, contract, and
other income.

Seventy-two percent (72%) of the expenses of the Town were related to education, followed by six
percent (6%) related to general government, eleven percent (11%) related to public works, five
percent (5%) related to culture and recreation, and six percent (6%) related to the remainder of the
government’'s expenses.

Business-Type activities. The business-type activities consist of the water and sewer funds. The
net position increased by $843,880 during the current fiscal year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town of Putnam, CT uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town of Putnam, CT's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town of Putnam, CT's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Putham, CT's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $14,992,722, an increase of $431,298 in comparison with the prior
year. The governmental funds currently have an unassigned fund balance of $1,810,894, or 12.1% of
total governmental funds fund balance.

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Putnam, CT. At the end
of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $6,998,503. As a
measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 25.36% of total General Fund Budget Basis
expenditures.

The fund balance of the Town of Putnam, CT's General Fund increased by $448,645 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this increase are as follows:

e The anticipated use of $566,101 of fund balance to balance the budget which was not
necessary due to factors described below.

e Revenues coming in over budget by $882,435 particularly in tax collections and charges for
services.

e Expenditures coming in $29,834 under budget.



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Ash Landfill Fund. The fund is utilized by the Town to account for the accumulation of host fee
revenue, derived from the ash landfill that is in excess of the annual amount budgeted for spending in
the Town’s General Fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance of the Ash Landfill Fund
was $4,017,321. $1,029,021 of fund balance is considered nonspendable as this amount has been
advanced to the Town’s 5-Year Capital Nonrecurring Fund as an internal financing mechanism for
funding authorized capital improvements. $774,687 is considered committed towards remaining
authorizations on capital improvements. The remaining balance is considered restricted pursuant to
Town ordinance. The fund balance of the Ash Landfill Fund decreased by $9,030 during the current
fiscal year. This decrease is primarily related to the transfer of funds to capital projects funds greater
than the current year's revenues of $897,928.

High School Renovation & Expansion Fund. This capital project fund was established by Town
resolution to account for the renovation and expansion of the Town’s high school, central office
facilities and the medical pathway facility. The Town has appropriated $36,610,000 for the renovation
and expansion of these facilities. As of June 30, 2022, the Fund is reporting an unassigned deficit of
$2,895,781. The Town intends to permanently fund these expenditures through future grant
reimbursements from the State of Connecticut and the issuance of long-term debt.

Municipal Complex Fund. The Town authorized an appropriation of $19,940,697 for the design and
construction of a municipal complex and authorized the issuance of bonds and notes to fund the
appropriation along with a state grant in the amount of $1,000,000. The Town also authorized the use
of $5,500,000 from the Ash Landfill Fund to permanently finance a portion of the costs. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the municipal complex fund was $414,198.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The actual net change in fund balance of the General Fund on a budgetary basis was an increase of
$346,168. Budgetary revenues were $882,435 greater than expected due primarily to higher than
anticipated tax collections, investment income, and charges for services. Budgetary expenditures
were $29,834 less than expected due primarily to savings in education, general government,
sanitation, and community and social service. The Town also anticipated to use $566,101 from its
fund balance which was not necessary.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The Town of Putnam, CT’s reported value in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2022, amounts to $133,488,526 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This reported value in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings
and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges.
The total increase in the Town’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
$2,704,966.

2022 2021
Governmental Activities:
Land $ 2,055,563 $ 2,055,563
Construction in Progress 29,545,904 25,844 685
Infrastructure and Improvements 15,144,073 15,708,603
Buildings and Improvements 35,658,139 36,409,505
Machinery and Equipment 2,850,236 2,370,266

$ 85,153,915 $ 82,388,622




TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

2022 2021
Business-Type Activities:
Construction in Progress $ 1,303,040 $ 139,218
Infrastructure and Improvements 21,469,442 22,047,175
Buildings and Improvements 24,727,303 25,352,174
Machinery and Equipment 834,826 856,371

$ 48,334,611 $ 48,394,938

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
« Various bridge projects
e Municipal complex construction
e Generator project for the WPCA
e Equipment at the WPCA

e Various trucks and public works equipment

Additional information on the Town of Putnam, CT's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages
36-37 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Putnam, CT had long-term debt
and other long-term liabilities outstanding of $52,605,878.

2022 2021

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds $ 20,200,000 $ 21,245,000
Unamortized Bond Premiums 1,331,313 1,403,617
Loans Payable 544,000 560,000
Equipment Financing Notes 476,386 45,324
Compensated Absences 356,289 371,534
Landfill Post-Closure Liability 343,000 388,000
OPEB Liability 3,006,334 3,936,622

Total Governmental Activities $ 26,257,322 $ 27,950,097

Business-Type Activities:

Loans Payable $ 26,211,491 $ 26,956,577
Equipment Financing Notes 33,971 66,342
Compensated Absences 103,094 98,250

Total Business-Type Activities $ 26,348,556 $ 27,121,169

The Town of Putnam, CT’s total long-term debt and liabilities decreased by $2,465,388 (4.5 percent)
during the current fiscal year due mainly to the repayment of GO Bonds and loans payable and a
decrease in the actuarially calculated OPEB liability. Additional information on the Town of Putnam,
CT's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 38-40 of this report.

The Town of Putnam currently maintains a bond rating of AA by Standard and Poor’s.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
A summary of key economic factors affecting the Town are as follows:
. The Town receives intergovernmental revenues from the State of Connecticut. Connecticut's
economy moves in the same general cycle as the national economy, which from time to time
will affect the amount of intergovernmental revenues the Town will receive.

. Increased threat of losing State funding will continue to be a variable in our local budget.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Town of Putnam, CT’s budget for the 2023
fiscal year.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Putnam, CT's finances
for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the

information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Board of Finance, Town of Putnam, 200 School Street, Putnam, CT 06260.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Receivables, Net

Internal Balances

Health Insurance Escrow

Other Assets

Net Pension Asset

Capital Assets:
Assets Not Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred Outflows - OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems
Accrued Interest Payable
Due to Fiduciary Funds, Net
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows - Pension
Deferred Inflows - OPEB
Related to Leases

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Enabling Legislation - Landfill Post-closure Care

Economic Development
Health Insurance
Other Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 17258749 $ 5955335 $ 23,214,084
7,581 - 7,581
13,158,210 1,715,377 14,873,587
(77,810) 77,810 -
2,533,818 - 2,533,818
21,135 148,796 169,931
1,528,403 190,836 1,719,239
31,601,467 1,303,040 32,904,507
53,552,448 47,031,571 100,584,019
119,584,001 56,422,765 176,006,766
1,580,265 197,311 1,777,576
802,855 - 802,855
2,383,120 197,311 2,580,431
1,760,538 233,277 1,993,815
295,585 202,205 497,790
108,081 - 108,081
3,145,690 - 3,145,690
1,400,215 836,759 2,236,974
24,857,107 25,511,797 50,368,904
31,567,216 26,784,038 58,351,254
768,749 95,987 864,736
1,849,983 - 1,849,983
10,060,215 239,425 10,299,640
12,678,947 335,412 13,014,359
62,602,216 22,089,149 84,691,365
1,870,613 - 1,870,613
1,082,178 - 1,082,178
2,296,578 - 2,296,578
452,959 - 452,959
9,416,414 7,411,477 16,827,891
$ 77,720,958 $ 29,500,626 $ 107,221,584

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net of Allowance
Other Assets
Due from Other Funds
Advance to Other Funds
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued items

Unearned Revenue

Due to Other Funds

Advance from Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenues:
Property Taxes and Interest
Lease Related
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

High School

Ash Renovation & Municipal Nonmajor Total
General Landfill Expansion Complex Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 13,198,964 $ - $ - 3 - $§ 4,059,785 $ 17,258,749
- - - - 7,581 7,581
12,097,738 - - - 1,060,472 13,158,210
- - - - 21,135 21,135
4,340,289 2,988,300 - 438,920 5,918,190 13,685,699
- 1,029,021 - - - 1,029,021
$29636991 $ 4,017,321 $ - $ 438920 $ 11,067,163 $ 45,160,395
$ 723,040 $ - 3 - 3 24722 $§ 775536 $ 1,523,298
246,224 - - - 2,899,466 3,145,690
9,740,346 - 2,895,781 - 1,235,463 13,871,590
- = - - 1,029,021 1,029,021
10,709,610 - 2,895,781 24,722 5,939,486 19,569,599
537,859 - - - - 537,859
9,953,814 - - - 106,401 10,060,215
10,491,673 - - - 106,401 10,598,074
801,882 1,029,021 - - 28,500 1,859,403
- 2,213,613 - - 1,535,137 3,748,750
210,323 774,687 - 414,198 5,749,467 7,148,675
425,000 - - - - 425,000
6,998,503 - (2,895,781) - (2,291,828) 1,810,894
8,435,708 4,017,321 (2,895,781) 414,198 5,021,276 14,992,722
$29636,991 § 4017321 $ - $§ 438920 $11,067,163 $ 45,160,395

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

Fund balances reported in governmental funds Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital Assets
Depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Property taxes and interest receivable greater than 60 days

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
risk management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are reported with governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position.

The net pension asset is not recognized in the governmental funds. The net
pension asset results from the difference between the pension plan's
fiduciary net position and the portion of the present value of projected benefit
payments to be provided through the pension plan.

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, deferred charges and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Net Position.

Certain changes related to pensions are deferred and amortized over time.
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred Qutflows - OPEB
Deferred Inflows - Pension
Deferred Inflows - OPEB

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements.
Accrued interest payable
Bonds payable
Equipment Financing Nofes Payable
Loan payable
Compensated absences
Post-closure landfill costs
Total OPEB liability

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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$ 14,092,722

128,120,349
(42,966,434)

537,859

2,296,578

1,528,403

(1,331,313)

1,580,265
802,855
(768,749)
(1,849,983)

(295,585)
(20,200,000)
(476,386)
(544,000)
(356,289)
(343,000)

(3,006,334)

$ 77,720,958



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

High School
Ash Renovation & Municipal Nonmajor Total
General Landfill Expansion Complex Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property Taxes, Interest and Lien Fees $ 16,162,723 $ - 9% - 8 - 5 - $ 16,162,723
Intergovernmental Revenues 11,720,734 - - 400,000 7,202,128 19,322,862
Licenses, Permits, and Charges for Services 3,060,474 897,928 - - 927,140 4,885,542
Investment Income 325,013 - - - 11,071 336,084
Other Revenue - - - 1,003,961 285,231 1,289,192
Total Revenues 31,268,944 897,928 - 1,403,961 8,425 570 41,996,403
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 1,843,158 - - - 45,537 1,888,695
Public Safety 127,059 - - - 177 127,236
Public Works 1,374,814 - - - 691,339 2,086,153
Culture and Recreation 986,958 - - - 90,506 1,077,464
Sanitation 497,006 - - - 193,692 690,698
Community and Social Services 371,243 - - - 1,253 372,496
Economic Development 129,556 - - - 104,395 233,951
Employee and Fringe Benefits 896,779 - - - - 896,779
Risk Management 265,902 - - - - 265,902
Education 22,056,192 - - - 4,692,352 26,748,544
Debt Service 1,914,546 - - - 27,195 1,941,741
Capital Outlay 518,915 - - 3,248,058 2,921,025 6,687,998
Total Expenditures 30,982,128 - - 3,248,058 8.767.471 42,997,657
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 286,816 897,928 - (1,844,097) (341,901) (1,001,254)
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
Issuance of Equipment Financing Notes 518,915 - - - - 518,915
Transfers In 79,383 4,984 - - 2,131,086 2,215,453
Transfers Out (436,469) (911,842) = - (799,624) (2,148,035)
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) 161,829 (906,958) - - 1,331,462 586,333
Net Change in Fund Balances 448,645 (9,030) - {1,844,097) 989,561 (414,921)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, Restated 7,987,063 4,026,351 (2,885,781) 2,258,295 4,031,715 15,407,643
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 8435708 $ 4017321 $ (2.895781) § 414198 $ 5021.276 $ 14,992,722

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (414,921)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 5,491,683
Depreciation expense (2,668,046)
Loss on disposal (58,344)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the funds.
Property taxes and interest collected accrual basis change (361,972)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-tem liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Proceeds from long-term debt - equipment financing notes (518,915)
Principal payments on long-term debt - general obligation bonds 1,045,000
Principal payments on long-term debt - loans 16,000
Principal payments on long-term debt - equipment financing notes 87,853
Amortization of premiums 72,304

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds.

Accrued interest 21,732
Compensated absences 15,245
Post-closure landfill costs 45,000
Net pension asset and related outflows/inflows 199,973
OPEB liability and related outflows/inflows (206,451)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs to individual
funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is

reported with governmental activities. 418,754
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 3,184,895

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT

June 30, 2022

Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Due from Other Funds
Health Insurance Escrow
Other

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Net Pension Asset
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Aceum. Deprecation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems
Accrued Interest Payable

Due to Other Funds

Loans Payable

Compensated Absences

Equipment Financing Notes

Claims Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Loans Payable
Compensated Absences

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows - Pension
Related to Leases

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Water Sewer Internal
Fund Fund Total Service
$ 4,087,123 $ 1,868,212 $ 5,955 335 $ -
1,061,916 653,461 1,715,377 -
214,068 266,426 480,494 -
; - - 2,533,818
110,401 38,395 148,796 -
5,473,508 2,826,494 8,300,002 2,533,818
97,997 92,839 190,836 -
- 1,303,040 1,303,040 -
26,986,644 20,044,927 47,031,571 -
27,084,641 21,440,806 48,525,447 -
$ 32,558,149 $ 24,267,300 $ 56,825,449 $ 2,533,818
101,323 95,988 197,311 -
$ 144,025 $ 89,252 $ 233,277 $ -
138,840 63,365 202,205 -
402,684 - 402,684 -
447 792 301,915 749,707 -
21,289 31,792 53,081 -
- 33,971 33,971 -
= i z 237,240
1,154,630 520,295 1,674,925 237,240
13,845,886 11,615,898 25,461,784 -
31,007 19,006 50,013 -
13,876,893 11,634,904 25,511,797 -
15,031,523 12,155,199 27,186,722 237,240
49,291 46,696 95,987 -
239,425 - 239,425 -
288,716 46,696 335,412 -
12,692,966 9,396,183 22,089,149 -
4,646,267 2,765,210 7,411,477 2,296,578
$ 17,339,233 $ 12,161,393 $ 29,500,626 $ 2,296,578
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Water Sewer Internal
Fund Fund Total Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 2,889,340 $ 2,821,097 $ 5,710,437 $ 4,341,635
Other 9,085 17,503 26,588 -
Total Operating Revenues 2,898,425 2,838,600 5,737,025 4,341,635
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 699,166 958,096 1,657,262 -
Contractual Services 245,678 470,763 716,441 -
Rent and Utilities 236,391 234,541 470,932 -
Supplies, Repairs and Maintenance 521,771 551,919 1,073,690 -
Depreciation 707,562 615,582 1,323,144 -
Administration 145,812 4,004 149,816 94,474
Claims - - - 3,330,748
Premiums - - - 499,861
Total Operating Expenses 2,556,380 2,834,905 5,391,285 3,925,083
Operating Income/(Loss) 342,045 3,695 345,740 416,552
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Antenna Lease 15,700 - 15,700 -
Interest Income 16,180 6,519 22,699 2,202
Interest Expense (308,602) (328,061) (636,663) -
Total Non-Operating Expenses (276,722) (321,542) (598,264) 2,202
Income/(Loss) before Capital
Contributions and Transfers 65,323 (317,847) (252,524) 418,754
Capital Contributions - 1,163,822 1,163,822 -
Transfers (28,709) (38,709) (67,418) -
Change in Net Position 36,614 807,266 843,880 418,754
Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated 17,302,619 11,354,127 28,656,746 1,877,824
Net Position - End of Year $ 17,339,233 $ 12,161,393 $ 29,500,626 $ 2,296,578

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Water Sewer Internal
Fund Fund Total Service
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 2,913,554 § 2,862,144 % 5775698 § -
Receipts from Interfund Charges for Risk Management - - - 4,341,635
Payments for Operating Activities (1,934,226) (2,292,532) (4,226,758) -
Payments for Benefits and Claims - - - (3,749,502)
Premiums and Administrative Charges - = - (594,335)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 979,328 569,612 1,548,940 (2,202)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Interfund Activity (414,946) (483,946) (898,892) -
Net Cash (Used)/Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities (414,946) (483,946) (898,892) -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interfund Transfers (28,709) (38,709) (67,418) =
Purchases of Capital Assets (87,392) (25,888) (113,280) -
Principal Paid on Loans (447,792) (297,294) (745,086) -
Principal Paid on Equipment Financing Notes - (32,371) (32,371) -
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (312,580) (333,858) (646,438) -
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (876,473) (728,120) (1,604,593) =
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Antenna Lease 15,700 - 15,700 -
Interest Income 16,180 6,519 22,699 2,202
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 31,880 6,519 38,399 2,202
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (280,211) (635,935) (916,146) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 4,367,334 2,504,147 6,871,481 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 4,087,123 § 1,868,212 § 5955335 § -

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) $ 342,045 % 3695 § 345740 % 416,552
Adjustments to Reconcile Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 707,562 615,582 1,323,144 -
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 14,285 - 14,285 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 15,129 23,544 38,673 -
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Qutflows (85,005) (80,529) (165,534) -
(Increase) Decrease in Net Pension Asset 211,133 200,020 411,153 -
(Increase) Decrease in Health Insurance Escrow - - - (436,505)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows (154,650) (131,637) (286,287) -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued (72,252) (64,826) (137,078) -
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable - - - 17,751
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 1,081 3,763 4,844 -
Total Adjustments 637,283 565,917 1,203,200 (418,754)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 979,328 $ 569,612 § 1548940 § (2,202)

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activity:
Capital Contributions from Other Funds $ - $§ 1163822 § 1163822 § -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2022

TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Restricted for Pension Benefits
Restricted for Scholarships
Total Net Position

Pension Private-
Trust Purpose Trust
Fund Funds

$ 212,022 % 478,304

15,862,911 100,857

- 111,381

16,074,933 690,542

- 3,300

- 3,300

16,074,933 -

- 687,242

$ 16,074,933 $ 687,242

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pension Private-
Trust Purpose Trust
Fund Funds
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 113,901 §$ -
Plan Members 160,604 -
Contributions and Donations - 22,125
Total Contributions 274,505 22,125
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation/(Depreciation) in Fair
Value of Investments (3,786,900) (2,097)
Interest and Dividends 1,080,474 1,131
Total Investment Income (2,706,432) (966)
Less: Investment Management Fees (35,868) -
Total Additions (2,467,795) 21,159
Deductions
Pension Benefits 581,966 -
Scholarships - 44,250
Administrative Expenses 10,223 -
Total Deductions 592,189 44,250
Change in Net Position (3,059,984) (23,091)
Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated 19,134,917 710,333
Net Position at End of Year $ 16,074933 $ 687,242

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Putnam, Connecticut (the “Town") have been
prepared in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing the governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The Town’s significant accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Town was incorporated in 1855 and covers 20.4 square miles located in Windham County. The
Town operates under a Selectmen/Board of Finance form of government. The Mayor is the chief
executive officer of the Town and is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Town. The Town
provides the following services by charter: general government, public safety (canine control and fire
marshal), public works, culture and recreation, sanitation, community and social services, economic
development and education.

The Town's financial statements include the accounts of all Town controlled operations. As required
by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include
those of the Town of Putnam (the primary government) and any component units. The basic criteria
for inclusion of a component unit in a governmental unit's reporting entity for financial reporting is the
exercise of oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is determined on the basis of financial
interdependence, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly
influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters and scope of public service. Currently, there are
no entities considered component units of the Town. The Town includes all funds, agencies, boards,
commissions, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent on the Town's executive and
legislative branches. The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have
been formed under applicable State laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from the
Town of Putnam.

Related Organizations

The Town is responsible for appointing members of the Board of the Town of Putnam Housing
Authority. The Town’s accountability for the Housing Authority does not extend beyond making the
appointments.

The Putnam Special Services District (the “District”) is responsible for the operations of the police
department, fire department, emergency dispatch center, and streetlights within the boundaries of the
District, which is located within the Town. The governing board of the District is elected by the citizens
of the District.

The Town is a member of the Northeastern Connecticut Transit District, which provides public
transportation to its member towns. In addition, the Town is a member of the Northeastern
Connecticut Council of Governments, which provides its member towns with access to transportation
planning, engineering services, land use planning and regulation development services, economic
development services, animal services, transit administration, property revaluation services,
emergency preparedness, geographic information services and paramedic intercept services. The
Mayor of the Town serves on the Board of Directors for each of these organizations.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances,
revenues and expenditures. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose
and is used to aid management in the demonstrating compliance with finance related legal and
contractual provisions. The Town maintains the minimum number of funds consistent with legal and
managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds as
that term is defined in professional pronouncements. Each major fund is to be presented in a
separate column, with nonmajor funds, if any, aggregated and presented in a single column.

The Town maintains fiduciary funds which are reported by type. Since the governmental fund
statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the
government-wide statements’ governmental activities column, a reconciliation is presented on the
pages following, which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based
financial statements into the governmental activities column of the government-wide presentation.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
Exceptions to this general rule include: compensated absences, debt service, capital leases, other
post-employment benefit obligations, and claims and judgments that are recorded only when payment
is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

Property taxes when levied and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government, or specifically identified.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges to customers for services relating to water and sewer usage. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of operations and maintenance, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

o The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another manner. Revenues
are derived primarily from property taxes, state grants, licenses, permits, charges for services,
and earnings on investments.

e The Ash Landfill Fund is a special revenue fund that was established by ordinance to account
for the accumulation of host fee revenue, derived from the Town’s ash landfill, that is in excess
of the annual amount appropriated for spending in the Town’s General Fund. The purpose of
the fund is to pay for the Town’s portion of the post-closure care costs of the ash landfill.

e The High School Renovation & Expansion Fund is used to account for the renovation and
expansion of the Town’s high school, central office facilities, and the medical pathway facility.

e The Municipal Complex Fund is used to account for the construction of the Town’s new
municipal complex.

The Town reports the following major enterprise funds:

e The WPCA Water Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated with the
processing and distribution of water to residents of the Town.

e The WPCA Sewer Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated with the
processing, treatment, and disposal of sewage within the Town.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide financial statements. The fiduciary funds are as follows:
e The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Town's defined benefit pension plan,
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees upon
retirement.

e The Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for trust arrangements under which
principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

e The Intermal Service Funds (Proprietary) are used to account for the Town’s self-insured
healthcare activities administered through the Eastern Connecticut Health Insurance Program.
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As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges
between the enterprise funds and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalents - The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General
Statutes. The Town maintains separate accounts with depositories where necessary. Cash
applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable. Cash in excess of current requirements is
invested in various interest-bearing accounts, certificates of deposit, and pooled investment funds that
may be deemed to be cash equivalents based on maturity date or availability of conversion to cash.
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value and have maturities
of three months or less. This definition also applies to the proprietary statement of cash flows.

The Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) is a money market investment pool managed by the Cash
Management Division of the State Treasurer's Office created by Section 3-27 of the Connecticut
General Statutes (CGS). Pursuant to CGS 3-27a through 3-27f, the State, municipal entities, and
political subdivisions of the State are eligible to invest in the fund. The fund is considered a “2a7-like”
pool and reports its investments at amortized cost (which approximates fair value). The pool is rated
AAAmM by Standard & Poors. This is the highest rating for money market funds and investment pools.
The pooled investment funds’ risk category cannot be determined since the Town does not own
identifiable securities but invests as a shareholder of the investment pool.

Investments - In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust, in obligations of any state or political subdivision rated within the top two
rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of the State of
Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any nationally
recognized rating service. Other trust funds may also invest in stocks, bonds, or other securities
selected by the Trustee.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, the Town is
required to measure the fair value of its assets and liabilities under a three-level hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities to which an entity has access to
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs and information other than quoted market indices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include:
a. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
b. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active;
Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the assets or liability;
c. Inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by
correlation or by other means.
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Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be used to
measure the fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability developed from sources independent of the reporting entity, and unobservable
inputs reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances.

Certificates of Deposit are reported at amortized cost and are excluded from the fair value
disclosures.

Donor-restricted Endowments - The Town allocates investment income on endowments in
accordance with donor restrictions and Connecticut law, which has adopted the provisions of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“UPMIFA"). UPMIFA requires the investment
of endowments in good faith and with the care that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position
would exercise under similar circumstances. It requires prudence in incurring investment costs,
authorizing only costs that are appropriate and reasonable. Factors to be considered in investing are
expanded to include, for example, the effects of inflation. UPMIFA emphasizes that investment
decisions be made in relation to the overall resources of the Town.

Funds Held in Escrow — Funds held in escrow as of June 30, 2022 consist of amounts held by the
Eastern Connecticut Health Insurance Cooperative (see Note 11), which administers the Town’s
health insurance activities.

Property Taxes Receivables - All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate,
are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The Town has established
an allowance for uncollectable taxes based on historical collection experience and other factors. The
Town has recorded an allowance for property taxes in the amount of $143,000 and an allowance for
related interest in the amount of $42,000 as of June 30, 2022. Property taxes are assessed of
October 1 and billed the following July. Real estate property bills are payable in two installments, July
1 and January 1. Motor vehicle and personal property taxes are payable in one installment on July 1,
with the motor vehicle supplemental bills payable on January 1. Assessments for real and personal
property, including motor vehicles, are computed at seventy percent of the market value. Taxes
become delinquent thirty days after the installment is due and liens are filed on balances that are
delinquent for one year.

Sewer and Water Charges - Sewer and water user charges are billed periodically throughout the year.
User charges are due and payable within thirty days and delinquent amounts are subject to interest at
prevailing rates. Liens are filed on all properties until the assessment is paid in full. The Town
establishes an allowance for uncollectible charges based on historical collection experience and other
factors. The town has recorded an allowance for sewer charges in the amount of $23,084 and an
allowance for water charges in the amount of $35,434 as of June 30, 2022.

Loans Receivable — The Town provides low interest loans in connection with the Town’s small
business and residential housing rehabilitation loan programs. Certain loans included terms of
forgiveness at a rate of 20% annually based on the original principal balance of the loans. In addition,
certain loans made by the Town under the program bear an interest rate of 0.0% and repayment of
the loans are deferred. Repayment of the deferred loans become due and payable only upon sale or
transfer of the property, the owner's demise, or when the subject property is no longer the applicant’s
principal place of residence.
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Inventories and Prepaid Items — All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items.

Interfund Receivables and Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due
to/from other funds” (the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as
“due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as ‘“internal
balances”.

Advances between funds are offset by a nonspendable fund balance designation in the Fund
providing the resources to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $25,000 for infrastructure assets and $5,000 for all other assets. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Machinery, Equipment, and Vehicles 5-50
Infrastructure 20-50

Leases Receivable — The Town's leases receivable are measured at the present value of lease
payments expected to be received during the lease term. Under the lease agreements, the Town may
receive variable lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee’s revenue. The variable
payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the payment is received.

A deferred inflow of resources is recorded for the lease. The deferred inflow of resources is recorded

at the initiation of the lease in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease receivable. The
deferred inflow of resources is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

28



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied. In the government-wide financial statements, unearned
revenues consist of revenue received in advance and/or amounts from grants received before the
eligibility requirements have been met.

Long-term obligations - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are recognized as an expense in the period they are incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, and debt
payments, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated absences - Town employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent
use or for payment upon termination or retirement. Vacation and sick leave expenses to be paid in
future periods are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if the liability has
matured through employee resignation or retirement.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The Town reports deferred pension and OPEB expense in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Deferred pension and OPEB expense
results from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other
inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension and OPEB expense over a period equal
to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees).

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Within the government-wide and
proprietary fund statements of net position the Town reports as deferred inflows amounts representing
the net difference between expected and actual results, changes in assumptions and projected and
actual earnings of its pension and OPEB plans. These amounts are deferred and included in pension
and OPEB expense over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all
employees that are provided with benefits through the pension and OPEB plan (active and inactive
employees). Also, for governmental funds, the Town reports unavailable revenue, which arises only
under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues
from several sources: property taxes, and interest and lien fees. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period during which the amounts become available. The
deferred inflows related to leases are recognized as lease revenue in a systematic and rational
manner over the lease term.
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Fund equity and net position— Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred inflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred outflows of resources. In the government-wide and proprietary
fund statements of net position, net position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents the net position of the Town, which is not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for certain expenses, the Town
expends restricted resources first and uses unrestricted resources when the restricted funds are
depleted.

In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified in the following
five separate categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Leases — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of the lease receivable in excess of the deferred inflow of resources for the
lease receivable, which is not a spendable resource.

Restricted Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. The
spending constraints placed on the use of fund balance amounts are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Finance (the highest level of
decision making authority of the Town) and cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
Town removes or changes the specified use by taking the same formal action.

Assigned Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that are constrained by the Town'’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Amounts may be
constrained to be used for a specific purpose by a governing board or body or official that has
been delegated authority to assign amounts by the Town Charter.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents the remaining fund balance after amounts are set
aside for all other classifications.

When both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, unassigned) amounts of fund balance
are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted fund balance
first if the expenditure meets the restricted purpose, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned
amounts.

The Town has not formally enacted legislation or Board policies requiring it to maintain a minimum
fund balance.
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Encumbrances — In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve
applicable appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as assigned fund balance
since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

NOTE 2 — CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402).
Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute or in amounts not
exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit in an “out of state bank” as
defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository”. The following is a summary of
cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022.

Governmental  Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Funds Funds Total
Cash $ 8,182,588 $ 1,425698 $ 690,326 $10,298,612
Cash Equivalents 9,076,161 4,529,637 - 13,605,798

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $17,258,749 $ 5955335 $ 690,326 $23,904,410

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town'’s policy is to only allow the Town to use banks
that are in the State of Connecticut. The State of Connecticut requires that each depository maintain
segregated collateral in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based upon
the bank’s risk-based capital ratio. The following is a reconciliation of the Town’s deposits subject to
custodial credit risk:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 23,904,410
Less: Cash Equivalents (STIF) (13,605,798)
Plus: Investments (CDs) 34,650

$ 10,333,262

At year-end, the Town’s carrying amount of deposits subject to custodial credit risk was $10,333,262
and the bank balance was $10,790,242. Of the bank balance, Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation insured $5,221,475.

As of June 30, 2022, $5,568,767 of the Town's bank balance of $10,790,242 was exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 4,961,890
Uninsured and collateral held by
pledging bank's Trust department
not in the Town's name 606,877
Total $ 5,568,767

Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2022, the Town's cash equivalents (Short-Term Investment Fund “STIF”) amounted to
$13,605,798. STIF is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and has an average maturity of under 60
days.
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Investments
The following is a summary of investments at June 30, 2022:

Governmental Fiduciary
Funds Funds Total
Certificates of Deposit $ 7581 $ 27,069 $ 34,650
U.S. Treasuries - 19,004 19,004
Mutual Funds - 15,917,695 15,917,695
Total Investments $ 7581 $ 15,963,768 $ 15,971,349

The following is a summary of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
June 30, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description
U.S. Treasuries $ 19,004 $ 19,004 $ - $ -
Mutual Funds 15,917,695 15,917,695 - -
$ 15,936,699 $ - $ -

Investments not included above:
Certificates of Deposit 34,650

Total Investments $ 15,971,349

The Certificates of Deposit are reported at cost and covered by FDIC insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial
credit risk.

Credit Risk — The Town does not have an investment policy that limits investment choices further than
the Connecticut General Statutes. Generally, credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer of a debt
type investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder. This is measured by assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized rating organization.

Interest Rate Risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment

maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates. Generally, the Town does not invest in any long-term investment obligations.
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As of June 30, 2022, the Town had the following investments subject to interest rate risk:
Investment Maturities (In Years)

Total Less Than 1 1-5 6-10
Certificates of Deposit $ 34650 $ 27,069 $ 7,581 $ -
U.S. Treasuries 19,004 19,004 - -
Total $ 53,654 $ 46,073 § 7,681 $ -

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the Town’s individual major funds and nonmajor and fiduciary funds in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor
General Water Sewer and Other
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 1,034,867 $ - 8 - $ - $ 1,034,867
Interest, Liens, and Fees 418,336 - - - 418,336
Usage Charges - 824,530 676,545 - 1,501,075
Loans - - - 563,360 563,360
Leases 10,755,696 272,820 - 125,186 11,153,702
Intergovernmental - - - 362,408 362,408
Accounts 73,839 - - 9,518 83,357
Gross Receivables 12,282,738 1,097,350 676,545 1,060,472 15,117,105
Less allowance for
uncollectibles:
Property taxes, interest,
liens, and fees (185,000) - - - (185,000)
Usage Charges - (35,434) (23,084) - (58,518)
Total allowance (185,000) (35,434) (23,084) - (243,518)
Net Total Receivables $ 12,097,738 §$ 1061916 $ 653461 $ 1060472 § 14,873,587

The loans receivable of $563,360 in the nonmajor governmental funds are long-term receivables and
not expected to be collected within one year.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

Governmental
Funds
General Fund:
Fees Collected in Advance $ 246,224
Nonmajor Funds:
Advances on Grants 2,899,466
Total Unearned Revenue $ 3,145,690
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Leases Receivable

In October 2017, the Town, acting as lessor, entered into a lease agreement for a Cell Tower that is
split 50/50 between the Town and the WPCA. Under the lease, the Town will receive monthly
payments through September 2037.

In March 2016, the Town, acting as lessor, entered into a ground lease that will expire in March 2066.
Under the lease, the Town will receive guaranteed monthly payments as well as variable payments
based on a formula. See Note 7 for additional information regarding this lease.

In October 2017, the Town, acting as lessor, entered into a noncancelable building lease that will
expire in September 2025.

Lease Receivable Deferred Inflow
Discount Rate at 6/30/22 at 6/30/22

Governmental Activities
T-Mobile Cell Tower 2.65% $ 272,820 $ 239,425
Wheelabrator 2.65% 10,482,876 9,714,389
Incubator Building 2.65% 125,186 106,401

$ 10,880,882 $ 10,060,215
Business-Type Activities
T-Mobile Cell Tower 2.65% $ 272,820 $ 239,425

The future minimum lease payments to be received under lease agreements are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

Year(s) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 $ 174680 § 286,238 % 10659 $ 7102 § 185,339 $ 293,340
2024 181,835 281,523 11,483 6,810 193,318 288,333
2025 189,296 276,614 12,345 6,495 201,641 283,109
2026 163,247 271,802 13,248 6,157 176,495 277,959
2027 157,336 267,653 14,194 5,795 171,530 273,448
2028-2032 862,102 1,272,196 86,698 22,600 948,800 1,294,796
2033-2037 1,002,591 1,149,045 117,456 9,180 1,120,047 1,158,225
2038-2042 1,017,130 1,014,637 6,737 30 1,023,867 1,014,667
2043-2047 1,153,375 871,625 - - 1,153,375 871,625
2048-2052 1,316,591 708,409 - - 1,316,591 708,409
2053-2057 1,502,906 522,094 - - 1,502,906 522,094
2058-2062 1,715,584 309,416 - - 1,715,584 309,416
2063-2067 1,444,209 74,540 - - 1,444,209 74,540

$ 10,880.882 §$ 7305792 §$ 272820 $ 64,169 §$ 11,153,702 §$ 7,369,961
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NOTE 4 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Fund transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and 2) to account for unrestricted
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2022,
were as follows:

Transfers In: Transfers Out; Amount
Governmental Funds:

General Fund Ash Landfill Fund $ 79,383
Ash Landfill Fund General Fund 4,984
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Ash Landfill Fund 832,559
General Fund 431,485
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 799,624
Proprietary Fund - Water Fund 28,709
Proprietary Fund - Sewer Fund 38,709
2,131,086
Total Transfers  $ 2,215,453

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that: 1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur; 2) transactions are
recorded in the accounting system; and 3) payments between funds are made. At June 30, 2022, the
outstanding balances between funds were:

Receivable Fund: Payable Fund: Total
Governmental Funds:
General Fund High School Renovation Fund $ 2,895,781
Water Fund 205,745
Private Purpose Trust Funds 3,300
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,235,463
4,340,289
Ash Landfill Fund General Fund 2,988,300
Municipal Complex Fund General Fund 438,920
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 5,721,251
Water Fund 196,939
5,918,190
Total Governmental Funds 13,685,699
Proprietary Funds:
Water Fund General Fund 214,068
Sewer Fund General Fund 266,426
Total Proprietary Funds 480,494
Fiduciary Funds:
Private Purpose Trust Funds General Fund $ 111,381
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Advances to/from other funds

The Town has authorized the use of funds from the Ash Landfill Fund to temporarily finance
authorized capital projects. The Town intends to repay amounts advanced from the Ash Landfill Fund
through future annual budgetary appropriations from the General Fund. The amounts advanced from
the Ash Landfill Fund are not expected to be repaid within one year and, therefore, the balance of
$1,029,021 has been presented as an advance in the accompanying governmental funds balance

sheet as of June 30, 2022.

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, consisted of the

following:

Govermental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure and Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure and Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Governmental Activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balances
$ 2,055563 $ - 3 - 2,055,563
25,844 685 3,701,219 - 29,545,904
27,900,248 3,701,219 - 31,601,467
26,669,160 - (12,182) 26,656,978
61,408,074 853,522 (452,141) 61,809,455
7,404,175 936,942 (288,668) 8,052,449
95,481,409 1,790,464 (752,991) 96,518,882
10,960,557 556,680 (4,332) 11,512,905
24,998,569 1,669,744 (416,997) 26,251,316
5,033,909 441,622 (273,318) 5,202,213
40,993,035 2,668,046 (694,647) 42,966,434
54,488,374 (877,582) (58,344) 53,552,448

§ 82388622 $ 2823637 $

(58,344) $ 85,153,915

Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Economic Development
Education
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Governmental Activities

36

$ 49310
6,871
809,626
307,635
6,926

1,487,678

$ 2,668,046



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Notes to the Financial Statements

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, consisted of the

following:

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construction in Progress $ 139,218 $ 1,163,822 $ - 1,303,040
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 139,218 1,163,822 - 1,303,040
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Infrastructure and Improvements 31,841,561 - - 31,841,561

Buildings and Improvements 33,294,368 11,300 (21,008) 33,284,660

Machinery and Equipment 1,477,235 101,980 - 1,679,215
Total capital assets, being depreciated 66,613,164 113,280 (21,008) 66,705,436
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure and Improvements 9,794,386 577,733 - 10,372,119

Buildings and Improvements 7,942,194 621,886 (6,723) 8,557,357

Machinery and Equipment 620,864 123,525 - 744,389
Total accumulated depreciation 18,357,444 1,323,144 (6,723) 19,673,865
Total capital assets, being depreciated 48,255,720 (1,209,864) (14,285) 47,031,571
Business-Type Activities capital assets, net $ 48,394,938 % (46,042) $ (14,285) 48,334,611

Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to functions/programs as follows:

Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 707,562
Sewer 615,582
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Business-Type Activities $ 1,323,144
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds $21245000 $ - $ 1,045000 $20,200,000 $ 1,045,000
Unamortized Bond Premiums 1,403,617 - 72,304 1,331,313 72,304
Loans Payable 560,000 - 16,000 544,000 16,000
Equipment Financing Notes 45,324 518,915 87,853 476,386 82,053
Compensated Absences 371,534 19,661 34,906 356,289 139,858
Landfili Post-closure Liability 388,000 - 45,000 343,000 45,000
OPEB Liability 3,936,622 - 930,288 3,006,334 -
Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $27,950,097 $ 538576 $ 2,231,351 $26,257,322 $ 1,400,215
Business-Type Activities
Loans Payable $26,956,577 $ - $ 745086 $26,211491 $ 749,707
Equipment Financing Notes 66,342 - 32,371 33,971 33,971
Compensated Absences 98,250 4,844 - 103,094 53,081
Total Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $27121,169 § 4844 $ 777457 $26,348556 $ 836,759

The loans payable recorded in the business-type activities are secured by the full faith and credit of
the Town but are substantially liquidated by water and sewer user charges. The remaining liabilities
above typically have been liquidated in the General Fund and other governmental funds.
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Bonds and Loans Payable

A summary of bonds and loans payable outstanding at June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Governmental Activities

Rural Development Loan Payable 2016

General Obligation Bond
Municipal Complex Bond

Business-Type Activities
Wastewater Loan Payable
Wastewater Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Wastewater Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Wastewater Loan Payable
Wastewater Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable
Drinking Water Loan Payable

Year of Maturity Interest Original Balance
Issue (FY) Date (FY) Rate Amount June 30, 2022
2056 2.25% $ 640,000 $ 544,000
2018 2043  3.00%-5.00% 12,280,000 10,300,000
2021 2040  2.00%-5.00% 11,000,000 9,900,000
23,920,000 20,744,000
1994 2024 4.50% 300,000 20,000
2012 2052 2.75% 6,800,000 5,716,492
2012 2031 2.06% 1,075,271 456,988
2013 2053 2.50% 711,000 605,918
2014 2054 2.75% 1,208,113 966,490
2014 2054 3.50% 3,836,000 2,930,849
2016 2056 1.75% 2,970,000 2,644,554
2017 2057 1.875% 9,100,000 7,962,500
2018 2058 1.875% 1,272,000 1,144,800
2018 2058 2.75% 1,580,000 1,422,000
2018 2058 2.25% 1,101,000 990,900
2018 2058 2.625% 1,500,000 1,350,000
31,453,384 26,211,491
$ 55373384 $ 46,955,491

Annual debt service requirements on bonds and loans payable as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

Year(s) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 $ 1,061,000 $ 720614 $ 749,707 $ 630,067 $ 1,810,707 $ 1,350,681
2024 1,061,000 668,006 754,489 611,989 1,815,489 1,279,995
2025 1,056,000 615,396 749,390 594,066 1,805,390 1,209,462
2026 1,056,000 563,036 754,416 575,493 1,810,416 1,138,529
2027 1,056,000 510,676 759,569 557,917 1,815,569 1,068,593
2028-2032 5,280,000 1,925,980 3,809,325 2,506,158 9,089,325 4,432,138
2033-2037 5,280,000 1,099,690 3,778,870 2,048,138 9,058,870 3,147,828
2038-2042 4,180,000 425 514 3,937,074 1,596,224 8,117,074 2,021,738
2043-2047 570,000 38,138 4,116,508 1,123,279 4,686,508 1,161,417
2048-2052 80,000 12,600 4,314,428 627,289 4,394,428 639,889
2053-2057 64,000 3,600 2,351,390 165,634 2,415,390 169,234
2058-2060 - - 136,325 3,285 136,325 3,285

$20,744,000 $ 6,583,250 $26,211,491 $11,039,539 $46,955491 $ 17,622,789

Authorized, Unissued Bonds
As of June 30, 2022, the Town had authorized, but unissued bonds totaling $10,465,860. Of this
amount, $5,050,790 is for general purposes, $3,045,023, is for educational purposes, $1,726,064 is
for sewer purposes, and $643,983 is for water purposes.
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Equipment Financing Notes
The Town has equipment financing notes for the acquisition of various equipment.

Principal
Year of Original Interest Final Outstanding
Equipment Issue Amount Rate Maturity June 30, 2022
Governmental Activities
Tandem Roller 2021 $ 54,389 0.00% 2/1/2023 $ 18,130
Freightliner Trucks 2022 314,441 3.22% 71112027 274,625
Daimler Truck 2022 204,474 4.11% 2/1/2029 183,631
$ 476,386
Business-Type Activities
WPCA Camera System 2019 161,217 4.94% 1/15/2023 $ 33,971

Annual debt service requirements on equipment financing notes as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

Year(s)
2023 $ 82,053 $ 16,397 $ 33,971 $ 1,678 $ 116,024 $ 18,075

2024 66,175 14,145 66,175 14,145
2025 68,508 11,812 - - 68,508 11,812
2026 70,925 9,396 - - 70,925 9,396
2027 73,427 6,893 - - 73,427 6,893
2028 76,019 4,301 - - 76,019 4,301
2029 39,279 1,616 39,279 1,616

Total $ 47638 $ 64560 $ 33971 $ 1,678 $ 510,357 $ 66,238

Compensated Absences

Vacation time earned during the fiscal year can be carried over to the succeeding year, subject to
limitations as provided in the respective collective bargaining agreements. Employees are entitled to
accumulate sick leave up to a maximum amount stipulated in each contract. Payment for
accumulated sick leave is dependent upon the length of service and accumulated days. The value of
all compensated absences has been reflected in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements.

Landfill Post-Closure Care Liability

The Town is an owner of a municipal solid waste landfill, which was certified as closed by the Town
during fiscal year 1997 and certified closed by the State of Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection during the Town’s fiscal year 2001. State and federal laws and regulations establish landfill
post-closure care requirements for thirty years after closure. On November 15, 1993, the Town
entered into a ground lease agreement (the “Agreement”) with a third-party contractor, the former
operator of the landfill (see Note 7). Pursuant to the Agreement, the contractor is responsible for the
performance of sampling and analytic activities associated with monitoring of ground waters and
surface waters affected by the landfill and the Town is responsible for all other post-closure care
costs. The Town has estimated total post-closure care costs for the remaining 7.5 years to be
$688,000, which includes an estimated $345,000 in costs to be reimbursed by the contractor.
Accordingly, the Town has reflected a liability for post-closure care costs in the amount of $343,000
as of June 30, 2022. This amount is based on estimates, which are subject to change due to inflation,
technology or applicable laws and regulations. The estimated liability is not recorded in the fund
financial statements since the liability will be funded from future financial resources, not from
expendable available financial resources.
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NOTE 7 — SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENT

The Town owns a municipal solid waste landfill facility. The Town has closed the landfill and leased
adjacent Town-owned property not constituting the landfill to a third-party contractor for use as a
depository for ash residue. The term of the lease is for 30 years expiring March 14, 2046 with an

option for two extensions of ten years each.

Base rent pursuant to the agreement per year is

$405,000, with additional rent determined based on a portion of the revenues generated by the ash
residue facility. Rental income recognized by the Town in connection with the agreement totaled
$2,664,971 for the year ended June 30, 2022. In accordance with the Agreement, the contractor is
responsible for all closure and post-closure care costs of the ash landfill required by State and federal

laws and regulations.

NOTE 8 - FUND BALANCE COMPONENTS

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Nonspendable:
Advance Receivable
Leases
Library
Total Nonspendable

Restricted for:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Comm. and Social Services
Economic Development
Education
Capital Purposes
Landfill Post-closure Care
Preservation Fees

Total Restricted

Committed to:
General Government
Library
Culture and Recreation
Comm. and Social Services
Comp. Abs. and Insurance
Economic Development
Capital Purposes
Education
Pay Per Sticker Program
Interscholastic Sports

Total Committed

Assigned:
Subsequent Year's Budget
Total Assigned

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

High School
Ash Renovation & Municipal Other
General Landfill Expansion Complex Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ - $ 1029021 % - $ - $ - $ 1,029,021
801,882 - - - 18,785 820,667
- - - - 9,715 9,715
801,882 1,029,021 - - 28,500 1,859,403
- - - - 4,482 4,482
- - - - 1,856 1,856
- - - - 168,814 168,814
- - - - 23,475 23,475
- - - - 2,431 2,431
- - - - 1,082,178 1,082,178
- - - - 149,670 149,670
- - - - 1,724 1,724
- 2,213,613 - - - 2,213,613
- - - - 100,507 100,507
- 2,213,613 - - 1,535,137 3,748,750
- - - - 297,354 297,354
- - - - 24,002 24,002
37,396 - - - - 37,396
- - - - 206,769 206,769
- 774,687 - 414,198 1,636,286 2,825,171
172,927 - - - 3,351,203 3,524,130
- - - - 177,271 177,271
- - - - 56,582 56,582
210,323 774,687 - 414,198 5,749,467 7,148,675
425,000 - - - - 425,000
425,000 - - - - 425,000
6,998,503 - (2,895,781) - (2,291,828) 1,810,894
$ 8435708 $ 4,017,321 $ (2,895781) $ 414198 $ 5021276 _$ 14,992,722

The Board of Education Carryover Fund, a component of the General Fund, is funded through
unexpended funds of the school from the prior fiscal year's budgeted appropriation, not to exceed 2% of
the BOE’s adopted budget for the given fiscal year. The funds are to be used solely for education
purposes. Board of Finance approval is required to use money accumulated in the Reserve.
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Deficit Fund Balances
The following nonmajor funds have deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2022:

Fund Amount
Recreation and Athletic Fields Fund $ (336,370)
Airline Trail Fund (36,765)
Quinebaug Regional Tech Park Fund (330,050)
Sewer Capital Project Fund (657,222)
Capital Nonrecurring Ash Fund (1,029,021)
Affordable Housing Grant Fund (2,400)

NOTE 9 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Town of Putnam is the administrator of a single-employer, contributory, defined
benefit pension plan called the Town of Putnam Retirement Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan covers
substantially all full-time employees, except professional personnel at the Board of Education who are
covered by the State of Connecticut's Teachers’ Retirement System. The Trustee Board composition
consists of 5 members; a member of the board of finance, a member from the library board, a
member from the bargaining unit selected by the Mayor, and two members appointed by the Mayor
with the approval of the Board of Selectmen. The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial
statements and is considered to be part of the Town’s financial reporting entity. As such, the Plan is
accounted for in the fiduciary fund financial statements as a Pension Trust Fund.

Plan Membership - Membership of the Plan consisted of the following as of July 1, 2021, the date of
the latest actuarial valuation:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 65
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 89
Active plan members 98

252

Benefits and Eligibility - Employees of the Putnam Special Services District, other than police
personnel, are eligible to participate in the Town’s Plan.

Benefit Provisions - Employees who work more than 30 hours per week are eligible to participate in
the Plan. Benefits fully vest after 5 years of service. Normal retirement date is the later of the
participant's 65" birthday or the 5! anniversary of joining the plan.

Pension benefits for normal retirement under the Plan are based on the average monthly
compensation during the five consecutive years of service, at which the participants’ earnings were at
their highest level. The participant's monthly benefit shall be equal to 1.3% of the average monthly
compensation multiplied by the total number of years of employment with the Town (limited to 40
years). The Plan permits early retirement for participants at age 55 with 15 years of service. Benefits
for early retirement shall be equal to the present value of the participants’ accrued benefit.
Participants are required to contribute 3% of the annual earnings.

Other Plan Provisions - The plan does not provide for disability benefits. If an employee becomes
disabled and must cease employment, they will be entitled to the same benefits as a participant who
has terminated employment. In the event of death, a beneficiary shall receive benefits payable upon
death, which are subject to certain limitations imposed by law. Death benefits will be equal to the
present value of the accrued benefits.
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Benefit provisions of the Plan are established and can be amended by the Town Meeting.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting — The Plan is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions
to the Plans are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the Plan.

Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Investments for which market
quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair values as determined by the custodian
under the direction of the Town, with the assistance of a valuation service. Investment income is
recognized when earned and gains and losses on sales or exchanges are recognized on the
transaction date.

Investment Policy — The Town policy in regards to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the Board of Selectmen. The Town pursues an investment strategy that reduces
risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset
classes, discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain
from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans. The following was the target
asset allocation of the pension plan as of June 30, 2022:

Target Allocation and Expected Rate of Return

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Weighting

U.S. Large Cap 32.00% 5.25% 1.68%
U.S. Mid/Small Cap 12.00% 5.75% 0.69%
Developed International Equities 8.00% 5.75% 0.46%
Emerging Market Equities 3.00% 7.25% 0.22%
Intermediate Corporate 20.00% 1.75% 0.35%
Intermediate Government 6.00% 0.75% 0.05%
High-Yield Bonds 10.00% 4.00% 0.40%
International Bonds 8.00% -0.25% -0.02%
Money Market/Short-Term Bonds 1.00% -1.25% -0.01%

100.00% 3.82%
Long-Term Inflation Expectation 2.50%
Long-Term Expected Nominal Return 6.32%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return — The long term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return are developed. Best estimates of the real rates of return for each major
asset class are included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation.

The information above is based on geometric means and does not reflect additional returns through

investment selection, asset allocation and rebalancing. An expected rate of return of 6.50% was
used.
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Concentrations - The Plan’s investments were not subject to concentration risk as of June 30, 2022 as
none of the amounts invested with one issuer represented more than 10% of the total assets for each
Plan.

Administrative Costs - Administrative costs of the Plans are funded by the Town.

Funding Policy - The Town’s funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at rates that,
when expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. The contribution rates for normal costs for the Plan were determined
using the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method.

Net Pension Asset
The components of the net pension asset of the Town at June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Total pension liability $ 14,355,694
Plan fiduciary net position 16,074,933
Net pension liability (asset) $  (1,719,239)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 111.98%

Actuarial Methods and Significant Assumptions

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the July 1, 2021 valuation and
projected forward to a measurement date of June 30, 2022:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level percent of salary

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll growth 2.50%

Investment rate of return 6.50%, net of investment and admin fees

Retirement age The earlier of age 55 with 15 years of service or age 65
Post-retirement mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-Weighted Mortality

Tables (with separate tables for General Employees, Public Safety
and Teachers), projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2020.

Changes of assumptions include a change in the mortality tables.

Discount Rate — GASB permits alternative methods to evaluate the sufficiency of the plan’s net
fiduciary position. Based on the plan’s current net pension liability and current contribution policy, the
plan’s projected fiduciary net position will be sufficient to cover projected benefit payments and
administrative expenses indefinitely. Therefore, since the fund is not projected to run out of money,
we have used the 6.50% interest rate assumption to discount plan liabilities.

Sensitivity Analysis — The following presents the net pension asset of the Town, calculated using the
current discount rate, as well as what the Town’s net pension asset would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (32,891} § (1,719239) § (3,148,496)
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The components of the changes in the net pension asset for the Plan for the year ended June 30,
2022 was as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liablity Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (9] (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 13,711,592 $ 19,134,917 $ (5,423,325)
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 369,772 - 369,772
Interest 896,672 - 896,672
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (69,669) - (69,669)
Changes in Assumptions 29,293 - 29,293
Employer Contributions - 113,901 (113,901)
Member Contributions - 160,604 (160,604)

Net Investment Income - (2,752,523) 2,752,523
Benefit Payments (581,966) (581,966) -
Administrative Expenses - - -

Net Changes 644,102 (3,059,984) 3,704,086
Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 14,355,694 $ 16,074,933 $ (1,718,239)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 111.98%

The Town’s net pension asset has been allocated between its governmental and business-type
activities based on the proportionate share of contributions made to the plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the total pension expense recognized is ($111,040). As of June
30, 2022, the Town reported deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Net differences between projected and actual earnings $ - $ 844,838
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,552,540 -
Changes of assumptions 225,036 19,898
Total ) 1,777,576 § 864,736

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized
in the pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ 83,363

2024 121,813
2025 (14,003)
2026 721,667
2027 ;
Thereafter -
$ 912,840
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Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement System

Plan Description: Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System (the
“System”). The System is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Board (CTRB). Chapter 167a of the State Statutes
grants authority to establish and amend the benefited terms to the CTRB Board. The CTRB issues a
publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ct.gov.

Benefit Provisions: The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Employees are
eligible to retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited
service including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Normal Retirement: Retirement benefits for the employees are calculated as 2% of the average
annual salary times years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary
during the 3 highest years of salary). In addition, amounts derived from the accumulation of the
6% contributions made prior to July 1, 1989, and voluntary contributions are payable.

Early Retirement: Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of Connecticut
service with reduced benefit amounts.

Disability Retirement: Employees are eligible for service-related disability regardless of length of
service. Five years of credited service is required for non-service-related disability or eligibility.
Disability benefits are calculated as 2% per year of service times the average of the highest three
years of pensionable salary, as defined per the plan, but not less than 15% of average annual
salary, nor more than 50% of average annual salary.

Contributions: Per Connecticut General Studies Section 10-183z, contribution requirements of active
employees and the State of Connecticut are approved, amended, and certified by the State Teachers
Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly.

Employer (School Districts): School District employers are not required to make contributions to
the plan. The statutes require the State of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount, that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees
during the year, with any additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees: Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual salary to the System as
required by the CGS Section 10-183b(7). For the year ended June 30, 2022, the certified
teachers’ contribution to the Connecticut Teachers Retirement Board was $723,311. Covered
payroll for the town for the year ended June 30, 2022 was approximately $10,333,008.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions: At June 30, 2022 the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows due to the statutory requirement that the
State pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate
share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the Town were as follows:
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Town's proportionate share of the net $ -
pension liability

State's proportionate share of the net

pension liability associated with the Town 30,963,786
Total $ 30,963,786

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. At June
30, 2022, the Town had no proportionate share of the net pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized benefits expense and contribution revenue of
$2,592,715 in the governmental funds for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State. In
the government-wide financial statements, the Town recognized $1,998,784 for pension expense
related to actuarial liabilities for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement.

Inflation 2.50 Percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.00-6.50 Percent
Long-term investment rate of return, 6.90 Percent

net of pension investment expense,
including inflation.

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males and
103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after
service retirement.

Future cost-of-living increases for members who retired prior to September 1, 1992, are made in
accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% and a maximum of
5% per annum. For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1,
2007, and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made that are
consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a
maximum of 6% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the
maximum increase is 1.5%. For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System
after July 1, 2007, pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for
Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If the
return on assets in the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the
return on the assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.0%.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was determined using a log-normal
distributions analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation.
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The current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by the
Treasurer’s Office are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity Fund 20.00% 5.60%
Developed Market Intl. Stock Fund 11.00% 6.00%
Emerging Market Intl. Stock Fund 9.00% 7.90%
Core Fixed Income Fund 16.00% 2.10%
Inflation Linked Bond Fund 5.00% 1.10%
Emerging Market Debt Fund 5.00% 2.70%
High Yield Bond Fund 6.00% 4.00%
Real Estate Fund 10.00% 4.50%
Private Equity 10.00% 7.30%
Alternative Investments 7.00% 2.90%
Liquidity Fund 1.00% 0.40%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that State contributions will be made at the actuarially
determined rates in future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The Town's proportionate
share of the net pension liability is $0 and therefore the change in the discount rate would only impact
the amount recorded by the State of Connecticut.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Board of Education Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Plan Description - The Town’'s Board of Education provides post-retirement medical and dental
insurance benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town’s Board of Education’s
group insurance plans, which covers both active and retired members, called the Town of Putnam
Teachers and Administrators OPEB Plan (the “Plan”). Benefit provisions are established through
negotiations between the Town's Board of Education and the union representing the employees and
are renegotiated each three-year bargaining period. The Plan does not issue a publicly available
financial report and is not included in the financial statements of another entity. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75.

Benefits Provided - The OPEB Plan provides for medical, prescription, dental and life insurance
benefits to eligible retirees, spouses and beneficiaries. Contribution requirements of the participants
and the Town are established in the provisions of the program and in accordance with the General
Statutes of the State of Connecticut. Currently, plan members are required to contribute 100% of their
healthcare premiums to the Town, less any reimbursements received by the Town from the State
Retirement Board. The Town finances the Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 5
Active plan members 122
127
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Total OPEB Liability - The Town’s total OPEB liability of $3,006,334 was measured as of June 30,
2022 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs: The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2021 valuation was
determined using the following assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 for June 30, 2022 Reporting Date

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Salary

Salary Increases 2.50% as of June 30, 2022

Discount Rate 3.54% as of June 30, 2022 and 2.16% as of June 30, 2021,
which is based on the 20-year AA municipal bond index.

Mortality Rates Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-Weighted Mortality

Tables (with separate tables for General Employees, Public Safety,
and Teachers), projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2019
Inflation 2.50% as of June 30, 2022
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 6.50% in 2019, reducing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate rate
of 4.50% per year rate for 2027 and later.

Changes of assumptions include a change in the mortality rates, interest rate, inflation rate, and
healthcare cost trend rates.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability.

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at 6/30/21 $ 3,936,622
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 197,243

Interest 89,149

Changes of Benefit Terms -

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience (637,930)

Changes in Assumptions (665,573)

Benefit Payments (13,177)
Net Changes (930,288)
Balance at 6/30/22 $ 3,006,334

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.54%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(4.54%) than the current discount rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
2.54% 3.54% 4.54%
Total OPEB Liability $ 3416424  $ 3,006,334 § 2,654,715
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s total OPEB liability would be
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.50%
decreasing to 3.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.50% decreasing to 5.50%) than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 2560094 $ 3,006,334 § 3,553,751

OPEB Expense: For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of
$205,328. As of June 30, 2022, deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB are
reported as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 27238 §$ (1,147,529)
Changes of assumptions 775,617 (702,454)
Total $ 802,855 § (1,849,983)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
the OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ (66,764)

2024 (66,764)
2025 (66,764)
2026 (66,764)
2027 (66,764)

Thereafter (713,308)
$ (1,047,128)

Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System - OPEB

Plan Description - Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with benefits, including retiree health insurance, through the Connecticut
Teachers’ Retirement System—a cost sharing multiemployer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the TRB. Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend
the benefit terms to the TRB. TRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.ct.qov.

Benefit Provisions - The Plan covers retired teachers and administrators of public schools in the State
who are receiving benefits from the Plan. The Plan provides healthcare insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses. Any member that is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit
through the Plan is eligible to participate in the healthcare portion of the Plan. Subsidized Local
School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving coverage through their
former employer and the TRB Sponsored Medicare Supplemental Plans provide coverage for those
participating in Medicare, but not receiving Subsidized Local School District Coverage.
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Any member that is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to continue
healthcare coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per month for a retired
member plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a local school district plan is
provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share of the cost of coverage, any remaining
portion is used to offset the district's cost. The subsidy amount is set by statute, and has not
increased since July of 1996. A subsidy amount of $220 per month may be paid for a retired member,
spouse or the surviving spouse of a member who has attained the normal retirement age to
participate in Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost, and contributes at least
$220 per month towards coverage under a local school district plan. Employees are eligible to retire at
age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service including at
least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Any member that is currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to either continue health
care coverage with their former employer, if offered, or enroll in the plan sponsored by the system. If
they elect to remain in the Plan with their former employer, the same subsidies as above will be paid
to offset the cost of coverage.

Contributions - Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436
as amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut are
amended and certified by the TRB and appropriated by the General Assembly. The State pays for
one third of plan costs through an annual appropriation in the General Fund.

School district employers are not required to make contributions to the Plan. The State of
Connecticut's estimated allocated contribution to the Plan on behalf of the Town was $61,012.

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows: active teachers’
pay for one third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of their pensionable salaries, and
retired teachers pay for one third of the Plan costs through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the
cost of health insurance for eligible retired members and dependents.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2020 using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Real Wage Growth 0.50%

Wage Inflation 3.00%

Salary increases 3.00-6.50%, including inflation

Long-term investment rate of return 3.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

including inflation
Municipal bond index rate:

Measurement Date 217%

Prior Measurement Date 2.21%
The projected fiduciary net position is projected to be depleted in 2023.

Single equivalent interest rate

Measurement Date 2.17%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including price inflation
Prior Measurement Date 2.21%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

Including price inflation
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Healthcare cost trend rates:
Medicare 5.125% for 2020 decreasing to an ultimate
Rate of 4.50% by 2023

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Health Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males and
103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after
service retirement.

Long-Term Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part
of the GASB 75 valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluation the long-term rate of
return assumption, including the Plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal distribution analysis
using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of
investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined by weighing the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The assumption
is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.

The target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:

Expected 10-Year

Target Geometric Real Standard
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return  peviation
U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) 100.0% -0.42% 1.78%
Price inflation 2.50%
Expected rate of return (Rounded nearest 0.25%) 2.00%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.17%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with GASB 75. The
projection’s basis was an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020. In addition to the
actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation, the following actuarial
methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows:

» Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active membership
present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total payroll was assumed to
increase annually at a rate of 3.00%.

e Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member contribution rate.
Employee contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated amount of
total service costs for future plan members.

* Annual State contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent five-year average of
state contributions toward the fund.

Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be depleted in 2023
and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination of the single equivalent
rate.
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The following
presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using current cost trend rates, as well as what the Plan’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Lower Current 1% Higher
Trend Rates Trend Rates Trend Rates
Initial Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 4.125% 5.125% 6.125%
Ultimate Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 3.50% 4.50% 5.50%
Total OPEB Liability $ 2,825,445 $ 3,373,448 $ 4,122,829

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Discount Rates - The following presents the net
OPEB liability, calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point
higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.17%) (2.17%) (3.17%)
Net OPEB liability $ 4,128,983 $ 3,373,448 $ 2,784,528

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions: At June 30, 2022 the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows due to the statutory requirement that the State pay
100% of the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was
associated with the Town were as follows: ‘

Town's proportionate share of the net $ -
OPEB liability

State's proportionate share of the net

OPEB liability associated with the Town 3,373,448
Total $ 3,373,448

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. At
June 30, 2022, the Town had no proportionate share of the net OPEB liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of $61,012 in
the governmental funds for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State. In the
government-wide financial statements, the Town recognized ($124,571) for OPEB expense related to
actuarial liabilities for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.
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NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss involving torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries of employees, natural disaster and public official liabilities. The
Town purchases commercial insurance for all risks of loss except workers’ compensation and liability-
automobile-property insurance for which it participates in risk sharing pools. During the year ended
June 30, 2022, deductibles paid by the Town were insignificant. Neither the Town nor its insurers
have settled any claims which exceeded the Town’s insurance coverage during the past three years.
In addition, there have been no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from
coverage in the prior year.

The Town is a member of the Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public agencies that was formed in 1980 by the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities for the purpose of establishing and administering interlocal
risk management program.

Workers Compensation Pool

The Town is a member of CIRMA’s Workers’ Compensation Pool, a risk-sharing pool. The Workers’
Compensation Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant to the provisions of the Connecticut Workers’
Compensation Act. The coverage is subject to an incurred loss retrospective rating plan, and losses
incurred in the coverage period will be evaluated at 18, 30 and 42 months after the effective date of
coverage. The premium is subject to payroll audit at the close of the coverage period. CIRMA’s
Workers’ Compensation Pool retains $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Liability-Automobile-Property Pool

The Town is a member of CIRMA’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool, a risk-sharing pool. The
Liability-Automobile-Property Pool provides general liability, automobile liability, employee benefit
liability, law enforcement liability, public officials and property coverage. The premium is subject to
these coverages, and claims and expense payments falling within the deductible amounts are the
responsibility of the Town. CIRMA’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool retains $1,000,000 per
occurrence for each line of liability coverage.

Eastern Connecticut Health Insurance Program

The Town is currently a member of the Eastern Connecticut Health Insurance Program (“ECHIP"), a
cooperative formed in accordance with Public Act 10-174 of the Connecticut General Statutes in order
to self-insure medical and dental costs to the employees of its member Towns and Boards of
Education. Through this cooperative the Town accounts for and finances employee medical benefits
claims for eligible full-time employees of both the Town and the Board of Education. The Town
retains the risk of loss under the plan. A third party processes the claims filed under the self-insured
health plan, for which the Town is charged an administrative fee. Through ECHIP the Town has
purchased a stop-loss policy for total claims in any one year exceeding an aggregate of 120% of
expected claims and for individual claims exceeding $150,000 for combined hospital and major
medical.

ECHIP establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not
reported at June 30, 2022. Claims liabilities are recorded if information prior to the issuance of the
financial statements indicates that it is possible that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of possible loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount of
the claims accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claims, which includes past
experience data, inflation and other economic and societal factors and incremental claim adjustment
expenses, net of estimated subrogation recoveries.
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The following is a summary of claims activity for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020:

Beginning Current Year Ending
Year Claims Claims and Changes Claim Claims
Ended Payable in Estimates Payments Payable
2022 $ 219,489 $ 3,330,748 $ (3,312,997) $ 237,240
2021 213,267 3,342,461 (3,336,239) 219,489
2020 278,604 3,082,708 (3,148,045) 213,267

As of June 30, 2022, cumulative contributions paid by the Town to ECHIP exceeded insurance
premiums, claims and fees paid by $2,296,578. This amount has been recognized as funds held in
escrow and is restricted for health insurance costs. In addition, employees of the Putnam Special
Services District are eligible to participate in the Town’s Plan.

NOTE 12 — LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES

/
Litigation - The Town is not a defendant in any lawsuits that, in the opinion of Town Management, in
consultation with the Town Attorney, will have an adverse, material effect on the Town’s financial
position.

Grants - The Town participates in several Federal and State assisted grants programs. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
audits of certain of these programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2022 have not yet been
conducted. Accordingly, the Town's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the Town expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial.

NOTE 13 — UPCOMING PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Pronouncements Issued, But Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements that
have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. Management has not currently
determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following statements may have on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 91 — Conduit Debt Obligations — The primary objectives of this statement are to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are
effective for the Town’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 94 — Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements — The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). The
requirements of this statement are effective for the Town'’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.
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GASB Statement No. 96 — Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements — This
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The requirements of
this statement are effective for the Town’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 99 — Omnibus 2022 - The objectives of this Statement are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial
guarantees. The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP
distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging
governments, clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology
updates related to Statement 53 and Statement 63 are effective upon issuance. The requirements
related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for the Town's reporting period beginning July 1,
2022. The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of
derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for the Town’s reporting period
beginning July 1, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 100 — Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - The primary objective of this
Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and
error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable
information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for the Town’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 101 — Compensated Absences - The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and
measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the
recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the Town’s reporting period
beginning July 1, 2024.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 14 — ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

As a result of the implementation of GASB No. 87, Leases, as of July 1, 2021, the Town made the
following reporting change: leases receivable were added to receivables and deferred leases are now
reported under deferred inflows of resources. In addition to the restatements from adopting GASB No.
87, the Town also now reports the Student Activities Fund as a special revenue fund instead of as a
Custodial Fund. The results of the changes to the fund balance and net position are as follows:

Net position/fund balance as reported at June 30, 2021
Adoption of GASB 87:

Receivables

Deferred inflows

Reclassify student activity fund to proper fund type

Net position/fund balance as restated at July 1, 2021

Nonmajor
Governmental  Business-Type General Governmental Custodial
Activities Activities Fund Funds Funds
$ 73689844 S 28629182 § 7287658 § 3884901 § 128,129
11,048,786 282,689 10,890,962 157,824 -
(10,330,696) (255,125) (10,191,557) (139,139) -
128,129 - - 128,129 (128,129)
$ 74536063 $ 28656746 $ 7,987,083 $§ 4031715 § -
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Taxes, Liens and Interest
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Investment Income

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Sanitation
Community and Social Services
Economic Development
Employee and Fringe Benefits
Risk Management
Information Technology
Redevelopment
Contingency/Reserves
Education

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Appropriation of Fund Balance
Transfer in from Other Funds
Transfers Out to Other Funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Actual
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary

Original Amended Basis Variance
$ 15,300,408 $ 15,300,408 $ 16,162,723 $ 862,315
8,690,985 8,890,985 8,616,364 (274,621)
2,985,269 2,985,269 3,244,973 259,704
3,000 3,000 38,037 35,037
26,979,662 27,179,662 28,062,097 882,435
1,703,044 1,721,181 1,710,731 (10,450)
125,050 127,059 127,059 -
1,353,316 1,375,087 1,374,814 (273)
994,383 986,958 986,958 -
466,790 503,991 497,006 (6,985)
366,836 373,761 371,243 (2,518)
132,305 129,556 129,556 -
932,907 897,179 896,779 (400)
220,000 265,994 265,902 (92)
115,000 129,738 129,738 -
4,500 2,689 2,689 -
249,272 149,272 149,272 -
18,963,407 18,963,407 18,951,822 (11,585)
1,998,336 1,999,274 1,999,274 -
27,625,146 27,625,146 27,592,843 (32,303)
(645,484) (445,484) 469,254 914,738
566,101 566,101 - (566,101)
79,383 79,383 79,383 -
- (200,000) (202,469) (2,469)
645,484 445,484 (123,086) (568,570)
$ - $ - $§ 346168 $ 346,168

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT Page 1 of 2
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Actual
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Original Amended Basis Variance
Collector of Revenue
Current Year Taxes $ 14,968,408 $ 14,968,408 $ 15,423,343 $ 454,935
Prior Year Taxes 150,000 150,000 266,414 116,414
Interest, Liens and Fees 82,000 82,000 251,725 169,725
Motor Vehicle Supplemental 100,000 100,000 221,241 121,241
Total Collector of Revenue 15,300,408 15,300,408 16,162,723 862,315
Charges for Services
Town Clerk:
Real Estate Conveyance 60,000 60,000 199,965 139,965
Vital Statistics 60,000 60,000 54,797 (5,203)
Recording Land Records 52,000 52,000 72,920 20,920
Copy Machine Receipts 6,500 6,500 11,961 5,461
Miscellaneous 1,500 1,500 3,584 2,084
Dog Licenses 325 325 299 (26)
Recording Maps 150 150 240 90
Fish & Game Fees 100 100 305 205
Credit Card - Town Clerk B - 475 475
Bingo/Raffle Permits 500 500 - (500)
Total Town Clerk 181,075 181,075 344,546 163,471
General Government:
Ash Landfill Tipping Fees 1,950,000 1,950,000 1,950,000 -
Miscellaneous 100,000 100,000 48,988 (561,012)
Recreation 75,550 75,550 54,839 (20,711)
Telephone Access Line Grant 40,000 40,000 26,689 (13,311)
Housing Authority 50,000 50,000 43,823 (6,177)
Library Fines and Fees - - 8,579 8,579
Pistol Permits 800 800 1,750 950
Total General Government 2,216,350 2,216,350 2,134,668 (81,682)
Assessor and Building Official:
Zoning and Building Permits 120,000 120,000 167,726 47,726
inland Wetland Fees 500 500 418 (82)
Zoning Board of Appeals 100 100 303 203
Zoning Commission Fees 1,000 1,000 1,010 10
Zoning and Subdivision Fees 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Copy Fees - Building Official - - 18 18
Miscellaneous - Land Use 100 100 406 306
Total Assessor and Building Official 122,700 122,700 169,881 47,181

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT Page 2 of 2
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Actual
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Qriginal Amended Basis Variance
Charges for Services (Continued)
Rents:
Rents $ 12,350 $ 12,350 $ 8,100 $ (4,250)
Antennae Rentals 11,000 11,000 17,242 6,242
Total Rents 23,350 23,350 25,342 1,992
Miscellaneous:
Contractual Services 170,000 170,000 180,850 10,850
Administrative Reimbursement 76,225 76,225 104,323 28,098
Metal Recovery Revenues 70,000 70,000 61,870 (8,130)
Other Tuition 31,569 31,569 111,679 80,110
Senior Fees - - 2,284 2,284
Fuel Reimbursement 60,000 60,000 101,530 41,530
Library Utilities 12,200 12,200 - (12,200)
Library Shared Personnel 20,800 20,800 - (20,800)
Employment Reimbursement - - 3,420 3,420
Miscelianeous - Fire 1,000 1,000 4,580 3,580
Total Miscellaneous 441,794 441,794 570,536 128,742
Total Charges for Services 2,985,269 2,985,269 3,244,973 259,704
Intergovernmental
Education Cost Sharing 8,340,282 8,340,282 8,081,463 (258,819)
PILOT - Private Tax Exempt 108,104 308,104 345,851 37,747
Mashantucket Pequot Grant 75,902 75,902 66,794 (9,108)
Off Track Betting 40,000 40,000 - (40,000)
Municipal Stabilization Grant 71,039 71,039 71,039 -
Distressed Municipalities 27,573 27,573 23,953 (3,620)
PILOT - State Owned Property 18,421 18,421 18,421 -
FEMA 5,448 5,448 5,000 (448)
Additional Veterans Benefits 2,816 2,816 2,376 (440)
Disabled Persons 1,400 1,400 1,467 67
Total Intergovernmental 8,690,985 8,890,985 8,616,364 (274,621)
Investment Income 3,000 3,000 38,037 35,037
Total Revenues 26,979,662 27,179,662 28,062,097 882,435
Other Financing Sources
Appropriation of Fund Balance 566,101 566,101 - (566,101)
Transfer in from Other Funds 79,383 79,383 79,383 -
Total Other Financing Sources 645,484 645,484 79,383 (566,101)
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 27,625,146 $ 27,825,146 $ 28,141,480 $ 316,334

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT Page 1 of 2
Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Actual
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Original Amended Basis Variance
General Government
Mayor/Selectmen's Office 3 306,450 $ 328,455 328,455 % -
Town Clerk 150,210 153,687 153,175 512
Assessor 115,606 106,525 106,525 -
Treasurer 180,465 162,211 162,166 45
Revenue Department 129,742 118,173 118,173 -
Town Building 296,564 355,782 355,472 310
Land Use Agent 93,100 83,096 83,096 -
Land Use Commissions 6,400 3,305 3,305 -
Essential Services 48,500 34,449 34,449 -
HR/PR Department 57,202 61,865 61,865 -
Building Official 143,447 143,800 143,399 401
Legal Counsel 65,000 70,489 61,773 8,716
Board of Finance 35,800 33,767 33,767 -
Elections 27,520 21,086 21,086 -
Registrar of Voters 36,048 33,817 33,351 466
Probate Court 10,400 10,606 10,606 -
Board of Tax Review 590 68 68 -
Total General Government 1,703,044 1,721,181 1,710,731 10,450
Public Safety
Fire Marshal/Emergency Management 93,975 96,325 96,325 -
Animal Control 29,825 29,575 29,575 -
Facility Study Group 1,250 1,159 1,159 -
Total Public Safety 125,050 127,059 127,059 -
Public Works 1,353,316 1,375,087 1,374,814 273
Culture and Recreation
Library 429,905 411,538 411,538 -
Recreation 386,010 404,348 404,348 -
Parks and Grounds 177,968 170,572 170,572 -
Municipal Historian 500 500 500 -
Total Culture and Recreation 994,383 986,958 986,958 -
Sanitation 466,790 503,991 497,006 6,985
Community and Social Services
Veterans Center 5,728 4,454 4,454 -
Commission on Aging 8,300 8,713 8,713 -
Outside Agencies - Contributions 349 808 360,594 358,076 2,518
Social Services Department 3,000 - - -
Total Community and Social Services 366,836 373,761 371,243 2,518

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT Page 2 of 2
Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
Actual
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Qriginal Amended Basis Variance

Economic Development Commission $ 132,305 $ 129,556 $ 129,556 $ -

Employee and Fringe Benefits 932,907 897,179 896,779 400

Risk Management 220,000 265,994 265,902 92

Information Technology 115,000 129,738 129,738 -

Redevelopment 4,500 2,689 2,689 -

Capital Outlays & - ” -

Contingency/Reserves 249,272 149,272 149,272 -

Education 18,963,407 18,963,407 18,951,822 11,585

Debt Service 1,998,336 1,999,274 1,999,274 -

Total Expenditures 27,625,146 27,625,146 27,592,843 32,303
Other Financing Uses

Transfers to Other Funds - 200,000 202,469 (2,469)

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ 27,625,146 $ 27,825,146 $ 27,795,312 $ 29,834

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Budgetary Information and Accounting
The General Fund is the only fund for which an annual budget is legally adopted. The Town adheres
to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data for the General Fund.

On or before the fourth Wednesday in March and after input from each agency and
department of the Town, except for the Board of Education (BOE), the Mayor submits to the
Board of Selectmen (BOS) and the Board of Finance (BOF) a proposed operating budget for
the Town. In addition, the Mayor also submits a program concerning capital improvement
projects for the next five fiscal years and a method of financing them for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1.

On or before the second Wednesday in April, the BOS presents recommendations on the
Mayor's budget to the BOF and the BOE submits a proposed operating budget to the BOF.

Copies of the budgets are made available to taxpayers five (5) days before the public hearings
and five (5) days before the annual Town budget meeting. A Town meeting is held on the first
Tuesday of May. Should the recommended budgets fail at referendum, they are returned to
the BOF for adjustments. The budgets are legally enacted no later than ten (10) days after the
taxpayers approve them by vote.

Management cannot amend the budgets without approval of the BOF. Only the BOF is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts.

The BOF must approve any additional appropriation and a Town Meeting must be held to
approve any additional appropriation over $10,000.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is at the budgetary department line-item level (i.e. Finance Department, Board
of Selectmen within the General Government Function) for the General Fund, except for the
BOE where department control is implemented.

The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Encumbrances are
recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which
the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported in budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year.
“‘On-behalf” payments made by the State of Connecticut into the State Teachers' Retirement
System are not recorded for budgetary purposes.

All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from those
used to present financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP basis”). The differences consist primarily of payments made by the
State of Connecticut “on-behalf’ of the Town into the State Teachers’ Retirement System, which are
not recorded for budgetary purposes, the excess cost grant is net with expenditures for budgetary
basis, and additional revenues and expenditures pertaining to other Town funds, which are not
budgeted for by the Town due to perspective differences.

A reconciliation of General Fund amounts presented on the budgetary basis to amounts presented on
the GAAP basis is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Total Total Other Financing
Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses)
Budgetary Basis $ 28,062,097 $ 27,592,843 $ (123,086)
"On-behalf* payments -
State Teachers Retirement Fund 2,653,727 2,653,727 -
Excess Cost Grant 450,643 450,643 -
GASB 87, Leases Adjustment 102,477 - -
Issuance of Equipment Financing Notes - 518,915 518,915
Reclassifications for GAAP Purposes - (234,000) (234,000)
GAAP Basis $ 31,268,944 % 30,982,128 $ 161,829
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Supplemental, Combining
and Individual Fund
Statements and Schedules



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Combining Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2022

Board of
Education
General Carryover
Fund Fund Eliminations Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,198,964 $ - % - $ 13,198,964
Receivables, Net of Allowance 12,097,738 - - 12,097,738
Other Assets - - - -
Due from Other Funds 4,340,289 172,927 (172,927) 4,340,289
Total Assets $ 29,636,991 $ 172,927 $ (172,927) $ 29,636,991
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued ltems $ 723,040 $ - $ - $ 723,040
Unearned Revenue 246,224 - - 246,224
Due to Other Funds 9,913,273 - (172,927) 9,740,346
Total Liabilities 10,882,537 - (172,927) 10,709,610
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenues:
Property Taxes and Interest 537,859 - - 537,859
Lease Related 9,953,814 - - 9,953,814
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 10,491,673 - - 10,491,673
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 801,882 - - 801,882
Restricted = = : -
Committed 37,396 172,927 - 210,323
Assigned 425,000 - - 425,000
Unassigned 6,998,503 - = 6,998,503
Total Fund Balances 8,262,781 172,927 - 8,435,708
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 29,636,991 % 172,927 $ (172,927) $ 29,636,991

See accountant’s report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Property Taxes, Interest and Lien Fees
Intergovernmental Revenues
Licenses, Permits, and Charges for Services
Investment Income
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Sanitation
Community and Social Services
Economic Development
Employee and Fringe Benefits
Risk Management
Education

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
Issuance of Equipment Financing Notes

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, Restated

Fund Balances at End of Year

Board of

Education

General Carryover

Fund Fund Eliminations Total

$ 16,162,723 $ - 5 - $ 16,162,723
11,720,734 - - 11,720,734
3,060,474 - - 3,060,474
325,013 - - 325,013
31,268,944 - - 31,268,944
1,843,158 - - 1,843,158
127,059 - - 127,059
1,374,814 - - 1,374,814
986,958 - - 986,958
497,006 - - 497,006
371,243 - - 371,243
129,556 - - 129,556
896,779 - - 896,779
265,902 - - 265,902
22,056,192 - - 22,056,192
1,914,546 - - 1,914,546
518,915 - - 518,915
30,982,128 - - 30,982,128
286,816 - - 286,816
518,915 - - 518,915
79,383 85,000 (85,000) 79,383
(521,469) - 85,000 (436,469)
76,829 85,000 - 161,829
363,645 85,000 - 448,645
7,899,136 87,927 - 7,987,063
$ 8,262,781 $ 172,927 §$ - $ 8,435,708

See accountant's report.

72




g jo | abed

€L

‘Hodal sjuejunodoe 998

oL9'erl ¢ 2ov'v $ 1LIb20Cc $ T8v'Y $ 690°/0¢ ¢$ 0.9'89¢ ¢ 9sv¥'0LEL $

0.9'6¥1 - V22 LLL zer'y 690'20¢ - £€96'001'}

= - LLe'LLy - ¥5€°L62 - -

0.9'6tl - - z8r'y - = 8.1'280'L

- - - = SLL'6 = 68.'8l

- = = - - - LOov'901

- ov'y ovl'se - - 0,9'89¢ z60'c

» - - : - 5 1z

= 29’y = = - 698'0G¢ G90'c

= $ - $ ovi'se $ - $ - $ 108'LL $ - $

0.9'6%L $ 29%'¥ $ Liv'zoz $ zZ8v'v $ 69020 $ 0,989 $ 95¥0LTL $

- 29y ovL'L z8r'y - 89¢'c9T -

- - 815'6 - - oLL 9v5'889

185, . s - « - -

680'2rL ¢ - $ esl'eg8l ¢ - $ 69020 $ 269'Y0L $ Ol6'LeS $

pung punj pung pung pung pung pung ueoy
SalPAOY Weln weiboid sdiN Keiq sjuel yuswdojonaq
Jepng uojuaAald JENEIIS jedioiuniy feuoneonpy  Ajunwwo?)
Bnig lad ARed pue 2jWwouody

SANNd INNIAIA TVIO2dS

seJug|eg pund pue sadinosay Jo
smojju| pautajeq ‘saniliqer [ejoL

seouejeg pund [ejo|
paubisseun
psjiwwoy
psjolsay
s|qepusadsuonN
‘saoueleg pund

psjejoy esean
:$921N0S9Y JO SMOJJU| pailayeq

saiiger [ejol
spun4 Jayj0 Woly souBApY
spun JaylQ o} ang
anuaASY pauleaufn
SWIa)| paniooy
pue 3|qefed sjunoody
‘sejlliqen
soduejeg pund pue ‘sasinosay
Jo smopul pauageq ‘saiiliqer

S}ossy |ejolL
spund 18yj0 wol ang
sjassy 18Ul
JON ‘so|qeAiaoey
sjuswysanu]
sjuajeAainbg yseD pue ysed

sjossy

geoz ‘og aunp
SpUN4 [BIUSWIUISAOEL) JOfewUoN

199ys aoueeg Buiuiquio)
INJILO3INNOD ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL



"Hoday sjuejunoooe 938

12

26’ $ e8b'C $ 66692 ¢ 20S00L $ 1665 § - $ $

9G8'L Lev'e G/¥'ee 105001 795'9S (oo¥'2)

- = - e - (o0¥'2)

= - - - 285'9S n

9s8'L LEv'e Sl¥'€e 205'001 £ =

99 2] ¥25'c - 686'C 00z

= - €/8 - = -

= - 162 = - "

99 $ 25 $ oov'c $ - $ 686'C $ oov'z $ $

zZ6'L $ e8¥'z $ 66692 $ L0S'00L & 12565 $ - $ $

226'L £8v'c - 105001 1/G'66 -

= $ - $ 66692 §$ - $ - $ - $ $
pung pung pund pung pund pung pungy
Boq uspies uoneuoq s994 spodg juels jueli)

Alunwwod  uopeassey  uonenlesald ohsejoyssioy]  Buisnoq  snosugjedsIpy
9|qepioyy

SANNd INN3IAIY TvIO3dS

saouejeg pung pue $a2Jnosay Jo

SMmolu| pauaja( ‘seniqer [ejoL

$90ueleg pund |ejo|
psufisseun
pspiuwod
pajosay
d|qepuadsuopn
's9ouejeg pund

pejejay oses]
:$904N0S3Y JO SMOJjU| paliajeq

sshjiqel |eoL
Spun4 JSYjQO Wolj SoUeApy
spun4 JayiQ 0} eng
snuaAsy pauleaun
swia}| peniooy
pue s|qeAed sjunosoy
'saniger
saouejeg pund pue ‘saosinossy
Jo smoyu| pauisjeq ‘seniqer

S}9ssy |ejol
spund JayjQ wolj snq
sjessy Y0
JoN 'se|qeAlsosy
Sjusw)saAU|
sjus|eAInb3 ysen pue yse)

sjessy

g Jo g ebed

¢eoe ‘o€ sunp

Spun4 |BJUSWUIDAO0S) JolewuoN
193ysg aoueleg Buiuiquio)

LNOILOINNOD ‘WVYNLNd 40 NMOL



Gl

‘podal sjuBUNOIOE 898G

hr'szl ¢ vegse § - $ v08'085C $§ 9v0'Z/C $ €666 $ 6€6'c0Cc ¢  saduejeg pung pue sadinosay jo
smojju| pasisjeq ‘sellliqel [ejol
Lyy'szl 200've - TLL'ebY'T 166'LEC £66°LEG ¥18'891 ssoueleg pund [ejol
= = = - = = E paubisseun
Lyr'sel 200've - cLl'ebi'e 166°'2€T €66'LES = pspiwwed
- = . = = = v18'89l pejoLsey
a < - - - - - s|qepusdsuoN
:seoueleg pund
= = = - = - = pajejay asea
:1$90IN0S9Y JO SMOJJU| paliaeQ
= 268l - zeo’lel G50've - GclL'se sapiigen el
= - = - - - - spun4 JayjO WOl SoUBAPY
- - - z15'sol G55'ee = = spun4 J8y10 o} eng
- - - - - - - anuanay pauleaun
- $ ¢68'l $ - $ ocs'sc $ 00§ $ - $ gzL'se $ swis)| paniody
pue sjgeied sjunoooy
saniqer
sedue[eg pun{ pue ‘sasinosay
Jo smojuj pasiajaq ‘sspilqert
yv'szL ¢ ves'sz  § - $ +08'08G'c $ 9v0'TLC ¢ ¢ce6'.eS ¢ 6€6'€0C $ sjossy [ej0l
- €06'y - - - £66°LES 6€6'€0¢ Spung 1ayiQ woy ang
- - H GelL'Le - : - sjassy 8410
- = - 082'90¢ - = - 1eN ‘sejgenlaosy
- - - - - - - SjuswisaAu]
p'szl ¢ Les'oz  $ - ¢ e8c'esec $ 9v0'TLZ $ - $ - $ sjus|eAnb3 yseo pue ysed
sjessy
pung pungj pung pung pung @oInossy pung pung
saioed e [IoUN0) elus)eleD Apwed 2 uoijeanps  UOKHONJISUCOSY
|ooyosg Siswieq STV ssaulpeay |eroadg peoy
Repinjeg |jooyos aleoipa|y
SANNd INNIAIY TvIOAdS
2coz 'og sunp
SPUN4 |BIUSWIUIDAOL) JofewuoN
199ys 2oueleg bBuluiquiod
g jo ¢ abed 1NOILOINNOD ‘WVYN.LNd 40 NMOL



9.

‘Hodal §JUBjUNOOO. 888

Lloese’l ¢ - $ 86912l $ 66296l $ Z09'8¥E $ 69L°90Z ¢ €95'/9/ ¢  soduejeg pung pue $32In0say JO
Smopu| pautejeq ‘sonlliqel [ejoL
Lr9'e8 (0Lg'9¢g€) 869'vCl 929'sol z09'sre 69.'90¢ = S8dueleq pund |ejoj
- (02£'9€€) - . = - - paubisseun
L¥9'e8 - 869'v¢Cl 929's01 8.8'9v¢ 69.'902 - pajiuwod
g = s - vel'l = = paypLysay
- - - - - - - d|qepuadsuoN
'sdoueleg pung
- - - - - - - pajejoy osean
592IN0S9Y JO SMOJU] pallsyeq
9ey'69L L 0,£'9¢E - €29'06 - - €9G6'/9/ sai|iqer [ejoL
- - - - - - - sSpun4 Jayj0 Wolj 3oueApy
= 0.g£'9gE S # - - - spund Jayjo o} eng
0zL'vs'L - o €.9'06 = = 18¥'S9. SNUSASY pauleaun
gLL'vie $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 902 $ Sw8)| paniody
pue a|qehed Sjunodoy
‘sengen
saouejeg pun4 pue ‘saosinosay
30 smopu| paussjaq ‘seniqer
120'€S8°'1L $ - $ 869PCL $ 66296L $ cC09'8¥E $ 692'90Z $ €£95.9. $ sjessy |ejoL
1,0'¢58'L - 269'vCL 662961 209'sre 69.'90¢ €95'29/ Spun{ 1syio woly enqg
- - - - - - - s}ossy Jayl0
- - - 2 - - - }oN ‘sejqeAleday
- - - - - - - SjuaW)SaAU|
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ sjusjeAinb3 yse) pue ysen
sjassy
pung pung pung pund pun4 pung pung
S)lemapig spjai4 sylemepls  109joid Jenden Buiunosiuon |edadg jueln
yoinyp pue  ofvlYY pue 19308 Iajepn lende) uswdojersg  QINOD
3OO0)SPOOAA  LONEDIoDY aA0ID) olwouosy

SANN4d S103royd vildvo SANNG INNIATY TVIO3dS

geoe 'og aunp
Spun4 [BJUSWUIBAOS) JolewuoN

198ys aouejeg Buuiquiod

940 i ebed LNOILOINNOD ‘NVNLNd 40 NMOL



Ll

‘Hodal sjuBUNOOE 9398

/82'6€l $ GEE'GH ¢ gzg'/6 ¢ lezge $ Lvb'e6 $ - $ 6£6'6CC 008'6LL §  soduejeg pung pue $82Jn0say jo
SMojju| paliagaq ‘santiqer fejoL
968'czl 690'€6 825'L6 - S0lL'c6 = ® 008611 saouejeg pund |ej0]
. = - ps = - - - paubisseun
9s8'eel 690'c6 825'L6 - S01'26 - = 00g'6Ll papliwwod
= 5 = " E - - - pajolysay
= ” % = = - - - s|qepuadsuoN
‘saoueleg pun4
= g z = = - - - pajejoy asea
1$90IN0SaY JO SMOYU| paLaleq
Lev'sl 992'C " Lze's cve'l - 6€6'62¢ - senliqer |ejo|
= = = = - = P - SpUN4 JayjQ Wol) SdUBApY
- = = - ! - z - spun4 1sylQ 0} ang
- - - - - - 66622 - anuanay pauleaun
LeV'SL $ 99z'c $ - $ lze'e $ eve'l $ - $ - - $ SWwiS}| paniady
pue s|qelAed SUnoddYy
‘ssniiqen
sasuejeg pun4 pue ‘sadinosay
Jo smopu| pailajaq ‘seniliqer
/826l $ GEE'S6 $ 829'i6 $ 1ee'e $ lyvee $§ - $ ece'6cCc $ 008%6LL $ sjossy |ejoL
182'6¢El GEE'G6 82S'L6 Lze'z Lby'c6 - 6€6'62C 00g'sLl spund 1ayjo woi eng
= = s = - = « - sjessy Jayl0
- - - - - - - = JoN ‘se|qeAleoay
u 5 - - - - - - SjusUI)SaAL|
* $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - = $ sjusjeAinb3 yseo pue yse)
sjassy
pung pung pung pund pund pung pund pun4 o
amesay  Juswadeldey abpug abpug abpug L# oAy abpug abpug Bupped saug
juswdinbg  pueuonony SN SAI4 R peoy Yled  ooispoopn  1eens sbpug  Bnegeuing Apauuay|
weujnd jse3  uoneasody
SANN4 S123rodd 1viidvo
¢e0e ‘og aunp
SpuUN4 [EJUSWUISAOSL) JofewuoN
Josyg aduejeg bBuuiquiod
abed LNOILOANNOD ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL

glog



8.

‘Hodal S JUBJUNOOOR 898G

€91°/90°LL S - $ op9 $ 8lLZ'6EL - $ GlLo'lsy ¢ o00Z9L $
9/2°lz0's  (120'620°)) - (zzz'159) (060'0€¢E) G80'67F (59/'9g)
(sz8'i6z’2) (120'620°1) - (zzz'156) (0s0'0g€) - (g9s'a€)
19v'6bl'S . - - - 580'6vY -
LEL'GEG L = = = - - =
006'82 c - - s - -
L0¥'90L E = " = - =
987'6€6'G 120'620') 09 ob¥'969 050'0€€ 0£5'2 G96'ZS
120'620°) 120'620°L - - - - =
£9¥'GET'L 3 - 9/8'Cly 050'0€€ = 002'9)
99¥'668'C » o = - s =
9e6's.. ¢ - $ 0o¥9 $ +95'e82 = $ o0gs'C $ goL'9e ¢
€91°290'LL$ - $ 0ov9 $ 8lceEL - $ GLOISy $ ooZ9L §
061'816°G * 0¥9 = - GL9LSy -
SEL'LZ - 7 - - - :
2.¥'090°L - - glLz'eel - - 00Z'gl
186"/ - - - = - -
Gel'6S0'y ¢ - $ - $ - = $ - $ - $
[eloL pund ysy pun4 pung pung pung pung
Bupinosiuon yos| 1o8loug Nied Yyos]  juswsacsdw lesp
|lenden 19AL Jojelausn) |euoiboy ebpug suly
JETTES Bnegsuind

SANN4 SLOArodd 1viidvo

sdduejeg pund pue sadinosay jo
smoju| pausajeq ‘sapiliqer [ejol

saouejeg pund |elo]
paubisseun
pspliwwoy
pajouisay
ajqepuadsuoN
:sooueleg pung

palejey eses]
:S90IN0S3Y JO SMOJU| palisyeq

sanlliqel’ |ejoL
spun4 Jayj0O WoJl) 8oUeApy
spund Jayip 03 eng
SNuUaAsYy pauteaun
SWwig)| paniooy
pue s|qefed sjunosoy
‘so|Iger]

S90UB|RYg pPUN4 PUB ‘S8IN0SAY
Jo smopu| pasrajaq ‘senljiqer

sjossy [Bjo)L
spund JayjQ wolj sng
sjassy 12Y10
1oN ‘s9|qeAladay
sjuawisanuy|
sjusjeainb3 yses pue ysen

sjassy

9 jo g abey

}98yg aouefeg Buuiqwon

220z ‘0¢ aunp
Spun4 [eJUSWIUIAACL) JofewiuopN

LNOILOINNOD ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL



6.

*Jodal §,JUBjUNO2J. 998

oLo6rlL $ - $ LITLLL § T8y $ 6907L0¢ $ - $ €96'00L'L $ JesA jJo pud je seoueleg pund
621'82l - 20.'z8) - vizore - €8z'z8l'L pejelsay ‘IesA jo Buuuibeg je ssouejeg puny
WSz - (Lev's) z8r'y (svi'ee) - (oze'L8) ssoueleq pund ui abueyd 1eN
= - = - E £o¢'8l (28'S1L) (sesn)/seoinog Bujoueuld JaylQ leloL
Z - = - - - (zL8'S11) INQ sigysuel]
T = = » = £9¢'8l - u| sigysuel}
(sasn)/seainog Buidueuly Y10
Lrs'LT = (Ley's) z8r'y (s¥1L'ee) (g9e'8l) 786've sainypuadx3 JSA0
sanuaAay Jo (Aouaioye)/sseoxy
8¢9'8 = 769'¢6l 88l vl €85'VS §66'0€9'E 189’y sainypuadx3 jejol
} - - - = gee'le 2 Repng |enden
= = - - - - - 9oI9S 199Q
8c9'c8 - - - - 0£9'209'c = uoneonp3
= = N - - - 189'CY uswdojaAs( 21LIOUOOT
- - - - - - - $80IAIS [BI100S pue AJunwwo)
= = 769'¢6l s E = - uonejues
= < £ - £€85'vS - 2 uonealnay pue ainyny
- - - - - ® ® SHIOAA dlldnd
- - - - = " - Aeges alland
B * = 88l vl - . 5 JUSWIUISAOS) [eISUSD)
Jusung
sainjipuadxy
6910l - 197’88l 0/9'8l) gev'Le 761'719°€ €eT'LL SaNUaAsY [ejoL
= - - 098l 6v2'9 (AL X #4 s anusAsy JayiQ
= - Gzl ¥ oS = 068'c BWOooU| JuswisaAu|
691'v01 - ocl'egl = Z o eve'es se0IRS 1o} sebiey) pue sjiwiad 'sasusol]
7 $ - $ - $ - $ 6¥9'%L ¢ oOzz'ess'c § - $ sanuaney [ejusiuiarobisiul
SONUAAJY
pun4 pun4y pun4 pun4 pundg pun4 pund ueo
SONIAIOY el weiboly sdiN Aeign sjuelo) uswdojaasg
uspms uonuanaid 1oNs ledidiunpy leuoneonpg  Ajunwwio)
Bnig lad Aed puE 2|Wouoog
SANNd ANNIAIA 1VIOAdS
220T '0€ aunf papu3 Jesj ay) Jod
Spun4 |E}JUSLIUIBACS) JO[BWUON
saouejeg pun4d Ui sebuey) pue ‘sainjipuadx3 ‘senusasy Jo Juswsajels buiuiquod
9Jo | abed LNIILOINNOD ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL



"Hodal $,JUBJUNOIOE 998

08

9g88°L $

LEV'e $ Givec $

£05'001

$

78595

$ (oo¥'2)

$

$ Ie8 A JO pud Je seouejeg pun4

£€0°C

(221)

vseT'e g/z'ce

(ez9) 161

6lE'C6

88L'8

EVY'6S

(198'2)

(oov'2)

pejeisay JeaA Jo Buluuibag je seouejeg pung

sooueleg pund ui sbueys JoN

(sesn)/seoinog Buioueul4 Joyi0 €101

161

(L98'2)

INQ slajsuel)
uj s19ysuel]
(sosn)/sesinog Buroueuld Jayio

sainjipuadx3y J8AQ
S9NUBASY Jo (Aouaioleq)/sseaxy

88Z'¢ce

80c'oT

00S'S

sainjipuadx3y [g1ol

Kepno |eyde)

aolaies 1g9Q
uoieanpg
Juswdo|aas o1wouo9g
S82JAI8G |B100S puE Ajunwiwo)
uopejues
uones.Io9y pue ainyny
SHIOM Ol1Qnd
Asjes olland
JUBWLIBAOL) [elousn)

uaun)

sainjipuadxgy

ocy S8h'ee

88L'g

LyE'L)

008'S

SBNUSADY [B10]

ocy S8i'eT
$ - $ -

88L'8

$

LVE'LL

00S's

anusAsy Joyo

B0 JUBWISOAL]

S90IAIBS 10} sabieys pue syuLed ‘sesusol

¢ SBNUBASY fejusiiuisaoBlelu)|
sonuoAay

pung
Boq

pung
uspleo
Aunwwon

pun4
uoneuoq
uoneaoey

pung
se94

pun4
spodg
UoljeAlasald DlISBjoyDSIalU]

pung
el
ButsnoH

s|qepJoyy

pund
Wein
snoaueleosI

SANNd INNIAZY TVIO3dS

gJo Z ebed

2202 '0¢ sunr papu3 Jes A 8y} Jod
SpUn4 [EIUSWUISACL) JO[BLUUON

seoueleqg pund ul sebueyy pue ‘sainjipuadx3 ‘sonuaasy Jo Juswelels Buiuiquion

LNOILOINNOD ‘WVNLN 30 NMOL



I8

‘podai s,)uejunoooe 998

lyv'sel  $ 200'veC $ - TlLl'6vr'T § 166'LEC ¢ ¢66°/¢S $ vigeal $ les A Jo pu3 je ssouejeg pund
zeo'eol 666'€C = €05'26L'L vsy'ecl v8ec'ecy gsz'L6e pajelsay ‘tes ) jo Buluuibeg je seoueleg pund
SLy'eT € = 692'2599 LES'YLL 60,66 (Lvv'zel) sesueleqg pund ul abueyd joN
- - 44 - = - 000'GS} (sesn)/sea1nog Bujoueuld 19YIO [ej0L
- - - - - - - INQ slajsuel]
= - 144 = = = 000'SS1 uj sigjsuel]
(sasn)/seoinog bBuldueul4 18410
SILY'ET € (6¥P) 692'759 LES'VLL 60.'66 (L¥'Ll2) sainypuadx3 JAAQ
sanuaAay Jo (Aousioyeq)/ssedax3
191'6S 98L'CL (5124 650'GE8 Gee'LLl 00¢'9 6£€°'169 sainjipusdxy |ejo)
Ge0'LE - = = = = = Aepno [eyde)
= 2 - = = % - 90IAISS J98(
zeL'se = = 650'sE8 Gee'LLL 00g'9 - uoheanp3
- - - - - - - juswidojaas( dl1wiouo9]
- - - - - - - S92IAISS [B100S puUE AUNwwo)
2 = = = - = 2 uojejiues
= 981L'TL 51474 * = - - uoneslosy pue ainjing
= - - - - - 6£€'169 SHIOAA 2lIQnd
= . = s - = - Keges 2NgNnd
- - - - - - - JUBWUIBAOL) |BloUSD)
BULYI o)
sain)ipuadx3y
285'¢8 681°CL - 8ze'/8y'L 2e6°Lee 600901 868°CLy senuanay |ejol
00G'LL 681'CL - - - - geg'e snusAsy Jayo
- - - 1919 GG¢E - - 2WOooU| JUsUNSaAU|
280's - = £..'09 L1§°1€T 600'901 = $90IAI0S 1o} safiey) pue sjuled 'sesuadl]
r $ - $ - yec'ocy'L ¢ - $ - zoo'oly  § sanuaAay [ejuswulancbiaju]
SONUaAdY
pung4 pund pung pun4y pun4 aoinosay puny pung
solyjioeq 1ol Jlouno) eusise) Alwed g uojeonp  UORONIISU0DAY
[ooyos Slowied SpyY ssoulpeay leloads peoy
Kepinjes jooyos aleoipapy

SANNd INNIATA TVIOAdS

910 ¢ abed

220z ‘0€ eunf papus Jes ey} 1o

$pUN 4 [EJUSWLIBAOS) J0[eWUON
seouejeg pund ui sebueyn pue ‘seinypuadxy ‘senusaay o Juswalels Buuiquion

L1NOILOINNOID ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL



a8

"Hodai s,JuBjUNODDE 998G

Ir9'e8 ¢ (0/c'9ee) $ 869PZL $ 929'G0L $ 2098¥Ee $ 69.'902 $ - $ lesA Jo pu3 je saoueleqg pun4
Lr9'e8 (b¥ZelLy) = 929'601 vLy'vSe 96.'6Y = pajelsay ‘Jesp jo Buuuibeg e seoueleg pung
- vl8'9el 869'vZ1 - 881'v6 £/6'951 - saoueleg pund ur abueys jeN
- SvS'8y 00062} - €1£'29¢ 268°'LLL (€96'V19) (sesn)/seoinog Buroueul 1oYi0 |ejoL
- = - - - - (€96'v719) nQ sisysuel]
- S¥S'sy 000'6Z1 - £1£'792 Z68'LLL = uj s1ejsuel]
(sosn)/sosinog Buloueul4 JBYO
- 62€'88 (zog) = (szL'g9L) 180'6€ £96'vL9 sain)ipusdx3 J8AQ
S3NUBASY Jo (Aousioyeq)/ssaoxg
780'789 TiToe z0¢ S Gzl'89l v1£'6S 6v8'SC sainypuadx3 |ejol
780289 ziToz z0g = GzL'e9l - ? Aepno [eyde)
- - - - - - ¥ 80IA18S 199(
- - - - - - - uoneasnp3y
- - - - - v1L€'65 - juswdo|aas( d21wWouoo]
- - - - - - - S90IAISG [B100S pue Ajlunwiwio)
- - - - g 2 = uoljeyues
= - - - - - - uoljealoay pue ainynyd
= ) = - = - = S}IOMA Olland
- - = = - = - feyes olqnd
- - - - - - 6¥8'Ge JUSWIUIBAOY) |elausr)
Jusung
sain)puadxgy
280'289 10980} = - - GBE'36 zL8'ov9 senusAsy [ejo]
- = = = - G6E'86 - anusAsy 1BUYIO
- - = = - - = SWOooU| Juawisaal|
- 109'801 = - - - < S90IM9G 10} sebiey) pue s)ula ‘sesuai
280'c89 ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ zi8'ore ¢ senusAsy |ejusiuusarcbisiu
SONUDAIY
pund punj pung pund punj pund pung
sylemapIs spielq sylemepls  108foid |eyden BuuinosiuoN |eoads juelio)
younyg pue  opS|yyy pue Jeang 1sjep [eydeg Juswidolareq aino?
MOO)SPOOAA  UONE38.I09Y SA0I9) olwouooy

SANNd S103rodd 1v1idvd

SANNd INN3IATY TvIO3dS

9 Jo ¢ abed

2202 '0€ aunr pspug JesA auj Jo4
SpUN4 [EjUSLIUISAOE) JO[BWUON
sooueleqg pund ul sebueyy pue ‘sainypuadx] ‘senusasy Jo Juswalels Buluigwon

L1NOILOINNOD ‘WVNLNd 40 NMOL



€8

‘Hodai s,JUBJUNOIDE 995

968'ecl ¢ 690°¢e $ 825.6 $ - $ S0L'Z6 $ - $ - $ 008'6LL $
816'c9l 166'7. - - 660'/8 68.'89 - 008611
(z90'0r) ziLi'sl 825'L6 - 900'S (68.'89) ® <
656'9Z1 = 000'001 vL0'vL = (682'89) G 2
= - = = = (68.'89) i =
656'9C1 = 000'001 ¥10'vL B - - -
(1zo'z94) zii'el (zL¥'2) (r1L0'vL) 900's - z -
120’291 80¢'.LC Lsv'eLy rL0¥L ¥6€'s = ® Z
120’291 el Lev'ELy L0Vl ¥6e's E - =
= G61'/2 < = ™ - - -
- ocy'sy 600'LLY s 0o¥'0L = - =
- ozh'sy - - = - = =
- $ - $ 600LLF $ - $ oov'ol $ - $ - $ - $
pund pund pund pund pund pung pung pung o7
anosey juswasoe|day abpug abpug obpug L# oAy abpug abpug Bunied sAug
jswdinbg pueuonony SN SAI{ %R  PEOY jBd  MO0ISpoopn  Je9aas ebpug Bnegsuind Apauuay]
weulnd jse3  uonesioay

SANN4 S133ro¥d 1VLIdvD

lesA Jo pu3 e seouejeg pund

pojelsey ‘1eaj jo Buluuibag je seouejeg pund

saouejeg pun4 ul abueyd 1oN

(sasn)/saoinog Bupueuld Jsyio [elol

NO steysuel]
u[ sleysuel]

(sesn)/seainog Buidueul 12430

seinypuadx3 JonQ

sanuaAay Jo (Aousioyaq)/sseoxy

sainypusdx3 |ejol
Aepno |eyded
TNV CTan Te Ty
uojeonp3
juswdojors olwouod]

SEOIAISG [BI00S pUB AJUNWWoD

uopejues
uonealdsy pue ainyngd
SHIOA Jlland
Kyajes ojand
JUBWUIBAOL) |elauss)
Jusungy
salnjipuadxy

SonuaAsy (€101

anusAsy Jayj0
SUWI0DU| JUBLISaAUL|

$80IAIBS 10} sebleyd pue sjiwied ‘sesuedl

SONUBSADY _N«CQEC._®>OU._Q.C_
SINUBADY

90 g abed

2202 '0€ sunr pspu3 JesA ayj Jo4
SpUN4 |E)USUISA0S) JOfEWIUON

saouejeg pund ul sebueys pue ‘sainjipuadxg ‘ssnusasy o Juswsalels Bujuiquion

L1NOILOANNOD ‘NVNLNd 40 NMOL



¥8

‘Jodal sjuegjunoooe 98g

9/Z°'1z0's $ (1T0'620L) § - $ (zez'2ss) ¢ (oso'ose) ¢ seo'6vy  § (S92'0E)  $ lea jo pug je sedueleq pund
SL2'le0'y  (§9.'80L'L) - = (0s0'oge) 000°0S1 (8¥¥'y) pajeisey ‘JesA Jo BujuuiBeg je ssouejeg puny
195'686 vi.'6.L - (zez'LsS) s 680'66¢ (L1€'28) soouejeg pund ul sBueyd JeN
cor'LeE’) rrL'6. 8LY'LS 009'909 4 68.8LY - (sesn)/seoinog Buroueuld Jayio [ejoL
(vz9'e6L) E - - 5 - - IO sisjsuel]
980°1€1'2 vrl'6l 8L¥'.LS 009'009 - 68.8LY - u| sisysuel]
(sasn)/soainog Buroueulq a0
(L06'1¥E) £ (81¥'L9) (zeg'eol't) - (voL'sL L) (L1e'28) sainypusdx3 JaAQ
S3NUBASY Jo (Adusiola()/sseox]
LiY'L9L'8 s 8L¥'LS cee'e9l’l = ¥0.L'6)1 L1€'08 salnypuadx3 |ejol
szo'lee’e - 8l¥'LS 228'c9l’L - v0L'6LL LIE0S Aepno feydeg
S61'L¢ - - - - - - 80IneS J98d
26€'269'Y S = - - - = uonesnpg
S6£'701 = = - - - - awdojaas( 21Wouod]
£6T'L - - - E = - SOJIAISS |B100S pUB Ajunwiwio)
269'c6l - - - - - - uojeyueg
90S'06 . - = & = - uonealosy pue ainyno
6£€'169 = = = - = - SYI0M Dlland
Ll - s 2 £ 2 7 Aejes olqnd
1€5'Sy = = = “ - - JUBLUUIBADL) [BIBUS0)
ua4ng
sain)ipuadxy
0.5'6Zr'8 - - ] - = 000t sanusAsy |ejo]
L€C'S8¢C - 3 = - E = anusAsy Jaylo
LLO'LL - - - - & - BUWODU| JUSWISOAU|
ovl'ice = # = N = - S90IM8S 10} sabiey) pue sywisd ‘sasuaol
gcl'eoz’L ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ o000'8l $ senusAey [ejusuulancbia)
S9NUaAdY
|elol pund ysy pung punj pung pund pung
BuninoaiuoN yos| 103lold Wed yosl  juswanoldw jeit
|lenden 1BIAL Jojelsuan) |euoibay abpug auilIY
Jomas Bneqgauinp
SANN4 S103royd 1v.iidvd
2¢0T '0€ aunf papul Jes 8y} Jod
Spun [BJUSWUISAOS) JofeLUUuoN
ssoueleg pund u| ssbuey) pue ‘sainjpuadx3y 'senuansy Jo Juswa)e)s buluiquon
9o 9 sbey LNJILIINNOD ‘WVYNLNd 40 NMOL



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2022

Assets
Current Assets:
Health Insurance Escrow
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Claims Payable

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims Payable
Total Liabilities

Net Position
Unrestricted

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

BOE Health Town Health
Insurance Insurance
Fund Fund Total
$ 1,986,957 546,861 2,533,818
$ 162,195 75,045 237,240
162,195 75,045 237,240
$ 1,824,762 471,816 2,296,578

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

BOE Health Town Health

Insurance Insurance
Fund Fund Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ 2805380 $ 1536255 $ 4,341,635
Operating Expenses
Administration 66,741 27,733 94,474
Claims 2,014,531 1,316,217 3,330,748
Premiums 340,807 159,054 499,861
Total Operating Expenses 2,422,079 1,503,004 3,925,083
Operating Income/(Loss) 383,301 33,251 416,552
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Income 840 1,362 2,202
Change in Net Position 384,141 34,613 418,754
Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,440,621 437,203 1,877,824
Net Position - End of Year $ 1,824,762  $ 471816 $ 2,296,578

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds
BOE Health Town Health
Insurance Insurance
Fund Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Interfund Charges for Risk Management $ 2805380 $ 1,536,255 $§ 4,341,635

Payments for Benefits and Claims (2,398,672) (1,350,830) (3,749,502)
Premiums and Administrative Charges (407,548) (186,787) (594,335)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (840) (1,362) (2,202)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income 840 1,362 2,202
Net Cash from Investing Activities 840 1,362 2,202

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents = - -

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year = = 2

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $ -9 - $

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss) $ 383,301 % 33251 % 416,552
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Health Insurance Escrow (377,161) (59,344) (436,505)
Claims Payable (6,980) 24,731 17,751
Total Adjustments (384,141) (34,613) (418,754)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (840) $ (1,362) $ (2,202)

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Schedule of Debt Limitation
June 30, 2022

Total Tax Collections, Including Interest and Lien Fees - Prior Fiscal Year:

Town $15,438,836
Taxing District 4,235,652
Reimbursement for Revenue Loss on:
Tax Relief for Elderly - Prior Fiscal Year -
Base $19,674,488
General Urban Pension
Purposes Schools Sewers Renewal Deficit
(2.25 x base) (4.50 x base) (3.75 x base) (3.25 x base) (3.00 x base)
Debt Limitation:
Statutory Debt Limits by Function $44,267,598 $88,535,196 $73,779,330 $63,942,086 $59,023,464
Indebtedness:
Loans Payable 544,000 - 11,917,813 ** - -
Bonds Payable 9,900,000 10,300,000 - - -
Bonds/Loans Payable - Overlapping Governments 3,182,385 *** - - - -
Authorized But Unissued Debt 5,050,790 3,045,023 1,726,064 -
Total Gross Indebtedness 18,677,175 13,345,023 13,643,877 - -
Less: Estimated Grant Reimbursements - (3,000,000) **** - - -
Total Net Indebtedness 18,677,175 10,345,023 13,643,877 - -
Debt Limitation in Excess of Debt* 525,590,423 $78,190,173 $60,135,453 $63,942,086 $59,023,464

“In no event shall total debt exceed seven times annual receipts from base. The maximum amount permitted under this
formula would be approximately $137,721,416.

**Per Connecticut General Statutes 7-734 - Bonded indebtedness of municipalities - the aggregate indebtedness of the Town shall
exclude each bond, note and other evidence of indebtedness issude for the supply of water. As such, the Town has excluded
$14,293,678 in drinking water loans.

***Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the Town. This schedule
estimates the portion of indebtedness of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the Town.
This process recognizes that, when considering the Town's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne
by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. Overlapping governments consist of the Special Services District
and the East Putnam Fire District.

****Per Connecticut General Statutes 7-734 - Bonded indebtedness of municipalities - the aggregate indebtedness of the Town shall
exclude each bond, note and other evidence of indebtedness issuded in anticipation of the receipt of proceeds from any state or
federal grant for which the Town has received a written commitment or for which an allocation has been approved by the State Bond
Commission or from a contract with the state, a state agency or another municipality providing for reimbursement of capital costs but
only to the extent such indebtedness can be paid from such proceeds.

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Annual Long-Term Bonded Debt Maturity Schedule
As of June 30, 2022

Fiscal
Year
Ending 6/30 Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 1,045,000 $ 708,374 $ 1,753,374
2024 1,045,000 656,126 1,701,126
2025 1,040,000 603,876 1,643,876
2026 1,040,000 551,876 1,591,876
2027 1,040,000 499,876 1,639,876
2028 1,040,000 457,676 1,497,676
2029 1,040,000 415,476 1,455,476
2030 1,040,000 373,276 1,413,276
2031 1,040,000 331,076 1,371,076
2032 1,040,000 299,876 1,339,876
2033 1,040,000 268,676 1,308,676
2034 1,040,000 237,476 1,277,476
2035 1,040,000 211,162 1,251,162
2036 1,040,000 184,850 1,224,850
2037 1,040,000 167,926 1,197,926
2038 1,040,000 131,000 1,171,000
2039 1,040,000 104,076 1,144,076
2040 1,040,000 77,150 1,117,150
2041 490,000 49,612 539,612
2042 490,000 33,076 523,076
2043 490,000 16,538 506,538
Total $ 20,200,000 $ 6,369,050 $ 26,569,050

(Unaudited)
See accountant's report.

93



TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Debt Statement
As of June 30, 2022

Direct Debt
Long-term Debt
General Purpose $ 10,444,000
Schools 10,300,000
Water 14,293,678
Sewer 11,917,813
Total Long-term Debt 46,955,491
Total Direct Debt 46,955,491
Less:
Self Supporting Debt

Water 14,293,678
Sewer 11,917,813
Total Net Direct Debt 20,744,000
* Overlapping Debt 3,182,385
Total Overall Net Debt $ 23,926,385

* The Putnam Special Services District and the East Putnam Fire District

(Unaudited)
See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF PUTNAM, CONNECTICUT
Current Debt Ratios
June 30, 2022

2 Population 9,219
1 Net Taxable Grand List (10/1/20) (70%) $ 740,467,747
Estimated Full Value $ 1,057,811,067
Total Total Net Total Overall
Direct Debt Direct Debt Net Debt
$46,955491 $ 20,744,000 $23,926,385
Per Capita $ 509334 $ 2,250.14 $ 2,595.33
Ratio to Net Taxable Grand List 6.34% 2.80% 3.23%
Ratio to Estimated Full Value 4.44% 1.96% 2.26%

1 Revalued 10/1/19
2 OPM Municipal Fiscal Indicators

(Unaudited)
See accountant's report.
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